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990
&

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

*Th t h t fth turn t tisfy stat " ¢ Open to Public
€ organization may nave (o use a copy o IS return to satisty state reporting requirements Inspection

OMB No 1545-0047

2010

A For the 2010 calendar year, or tax year beginning 01-01-2010

and ending 12-31-2010

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

C Name of organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

|_ Name change

Doing Business As

D Employer identification number

38-1359087

I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)
601 JOHN STREET

Room/suite

E Telephone number

(269) 341-6000

I_ Amended return

|_ Application pending

City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007

G Gross receipts $ 545,175,757

F Name and address of principal officer
FRANK SARDONE

301 JOHN STREET

KALAMAZOO,MI 49007

If"No,"

I Tax-exempt status

¥ 501(0)(3) [ 501(c)( )™ (msertno) [ 4947(a)(1) or [ 527

H(c)

J Website: » WWW BRONSONHEALTH COM

H(b) Are all affiiates included?

H(a) Is this a group return for affiliates? l_ Yes |7 No

|_ Yes |_ No

attach a list (see instructions)

Group exemption number &

K Form of organization

|7 Corporation I_ Trust I_ Association I_ Other

L Year of formation 1920

M State of legal domicile MI

Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
PROVIDE EXCELLENT HEALTHCARE SERVICES
2
=
% 2 Check this box M if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
o 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 16
E 4 Number of iIndependent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 12
E 5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2010 (Part V, line 2a) 5 3,767
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 544
< 7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 10,064,853
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b 2,166,012
Prior Year Current Year
Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 0 21,600
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 513,035,089 523,230,224
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d) -1,573,309 7,332,176
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8c,9c, 10c,and 11e) 12,540,475 12,957,556
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 524,002,255 543,541,556
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), ines 1-3) 0 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-
$ 10) 250,448,103 262,621,860
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), ine 11e) 0 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »0
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), ines 11a-11d, 11f-24f) 232,295,264 234,850,186
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 482,743,367 497,472,046
19 Revenue less expenses Subtract line 18 from line 12 41,258,888 46,069,510
E$ Beginning of Current End of Year
g% Year
EE 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 648,343,807 692,930,720
.;'E 21 Total lhlabilities (Part X, line 26) 331,587,510 345,226,759
ZI-? 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from line 20 316,756,297 347,703,961

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my
knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any

knowledge.
’ A 2011-11-07
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here MARY MEITZ VICE PRESIDENT/CFO
Type or print name and title

Print/Type Preparer's signature Date Check If self- PTIN

preparer's name employed ¥ [~
Paid Firm’s name F PLANTE & MORAN PLLC .
P Firm's EIN &

reparer Firm’s address * 2601 CAMBRIDGE CT SUITE 500
Use Onl Phone no k (248) 375-
y 7100
AUBURN HILLS, MI 48326

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Instructions) [T Yes ¥ No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 2
[EITEii] Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part III . . . . . . . . . e

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

PROVIDE EXCELLENT HEALTHCARE SERVICES

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I_Yes |7No
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
serV|ces7..........................|_Yes|7No
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization’s three largest program services by expenses
Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations and section 4947 (a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and
allocations to others, the total expenses, and revenue, iIf any, for each program service reported
da (Code ) (Expenses $ 320,671,670 ncluding grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 440,904,648 )
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL (BMH) IS THE FLAGSHIP OF BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP, A NOT-FOR-PROFIT HEALTHCARE SYSTEM SERVING ALL OF
SOUTHWEST MICHIGAN BMH PROVIDES CARE IN VIRTUALLY EVERY SPECIALTY WITH ADVANCED CAPABILITIES IN BURN TREATMENT AND CRITICAL CARE AS A
LEVEL I TRAUMA CENTER, IN NEUROLOGICAL CARE AS A JOINT COMMISSION CERTIFIED PRIMARY STROKE CENTER, IN CARDIAC CARE AS THE REGION'S FIRST
ACCREDITED CHEST PAIN EMERGENCY CENTER, IN OBSTETRICS AS THE LEADING BIRTHPLACE AND ONLY HIGH-RISK PREGNANCY CENTER IN SOUTHWEST
MICHIGAN, AND IN PEDIATRICS AS ONE OF ONLY SIX CHILDREN'S HOSPITALS IN THE STATE AND THE ONLY INPATIENT PEDIATRIC CARE PROVIDER IN THE AREA
THE BMH EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT, WHICH IS OPEN 24 HOURS PER DAY, HANDLES OVER 84,000 VISITS PER YEAR BMH TREATS ALL PATIENTS REGARDLESS OF
THEIR ABILITY TO PAY BMH WAS THE RECIPIENT OF THE 2005 MALCOLM BALDRIGE NATIONAL QUALITY AWARD, THE NATION'S HIGHEST PRESIDENTIAL HONOR FOR
QUALITY AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE IN 2009, THE HOSPITAL RECEIVED THE AHA MCKESSON QUEST FOR QUALITY PRIZE AWARDED
ANNUALLY TO ONLY ONE U S HOSPITAL, AND JOINED THE TOP FIVE PERCENT OF HOSPITALS IN THE NATION TO BE DESIGNATED A MAGNET HOSPITAL FOR
NURSING EXCELLENCE BMH PROVIDES A DISPROPORTIONATE AMOUNT OF CARE TO THE SEGMENT OF THE POPULATION USING MEDICAID BMH IS THE LARGEST
MEDICAID PROVIDER OF ANY LARGE HOSPITAL IN MICHIGAN OUTSIDE OF THE DETROIT AREA (ON A PERCENTAGE BASIS) IN 2010, APPROXIMATELY 21% OF BMH'S
PATIENTS WERE MEDICAID RECIPIENTS WE HAVE THREE MEDICAID ENROLLERS ON SITE TO HELP THOSE WITHOUT INSURANCE ENROLL IN MEDICAID, OR REFER
THEM TO COMMUNITY RESOURCES EXPENDITURES RELATED TO THE OPERATION OF THE HOSPITAL IN 2010 IN FURTHERANCE OF ITS MISSION, BMH PROVIDED
$24,506,212 IN CHARITY CARE EXPENSE
4b (Code ) (Expenses $ 88,406,589 including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 78,513,000 )
IN 2010, BMH'S MEDICAID COST WAS $88,406,589 AND MEDICAID NET REVENUE WAS $78,513,000
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ 27,673,365 including grants of $ 0) (Revenue $ 0)
IN 2010, IN FURTHERANCE OF ITS MISSION, BMH INCURRED $27,673,365 IN BAD DEBT TO PROVIDE CARE TO ITS PATIENTS
ad Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
de Total program service expensesk$ 436,751,624

Form 990 (2010)
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18

19

20a

III

Page 3
m Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A'E 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instruction)? ] 2 Yes
Did the organization engage In direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) No
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part II 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part 5
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts where donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or iInvestment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part I 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 11T & . 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or
provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part I 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets Iin term, permanent,or quasi- 10 No
endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions 1s 'Yes,”then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, inel0? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part V. %5 11a | 7°S
Did the organization report an amount for investments —other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII.E 11b | VeS
Did the organization report an amount for investments —program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII.'E 1ic No
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX.'E 11d No
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X.'E 110 | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete 11f Yes
Schedule D, Part X.
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Parts XI, XII, and XIII 12a | Yes
Was the organization included in consolidated, iIndependent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
“Yes,” and If the organization answered '‘No’to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, XII, and XIII 1s optional 12b | ves
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(11)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 .
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business, and program
service activities outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the U S ? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . 15 No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to
individuals located outside the U S ? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000, of expenses for professional fundraising services on 17 No
Part IX, column (A), ines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part II 18 No
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part III
Did the organization operate one or more hospitals? If "Yes,” complete ScheduleH . . . . . E 20a | Yes
If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach its audited financial statement to this return? Note. Some Form 20b | Yes

990 filers that operate one or more hospitals must attach audited financial statements (see instructions)

Form 990 (2010)
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v

Part I

and V, Iine 1

Page 4
m Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and organizations in 21 No
the United States on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States 22 N
onPartIX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and III °
Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, questions 3,4, or 5, about compensation of the v
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated 23 es
employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was 1ssued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b-24d and v
complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25 24a es
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b No
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year v
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c es
Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d No
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage 1n an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I
Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highly compensated employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, 26 No
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor, or a grant selection committee member, or to a person related to such an individual? If "Yes,” 27 No
complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV 28b °
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c °
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified "
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, "

31 0
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,” complete "
Schedule N, Part I1 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations "
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 °
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Parts II, III, IV, Ves

34
Is any related organization a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35 v

es

Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity within the
meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, Iine2 . . . ‘E ¥ Yes [ No
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related "
organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, Iine 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization N
and that 1s treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 'E 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)
m Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Page B

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V T
Yes No
1la Enter the numberreported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable
1a 247
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter -0- If not applicable b
1 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1c Yes
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this
return . . . . . v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ] 2a 3,767
b If at least one 1s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?
2b Yes
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a i1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the
year? 3a Yes
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O 3b Yes
d4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? 4a No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or1s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? Sb No
c If“Yes”to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible?
b If“Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a No
services provided to the payor?
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to
file Form 82827 e e e e e e e e e e . e . 7c No
d If“Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
contract? 7e No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? 79
h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised f unds.
Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, ine 12 . . . 10a
Gross recelpts, Included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 1la
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them) . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
year 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to 1ssue qualified health plans in more than one state?
Note. See the Instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization i1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization 1s licensed to iIssue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reserves on hand
13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filled a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O 14b

Form 990 (2010)
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m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for
a "“No” response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule

Page 6

O. See Instructions.

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VI e
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax
year . . v 4 4w e e a 1a 16
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . . . . . 4w ea e e ib 12
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 Yes
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 No
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
filed? No
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? No
Does the organization have members or stockholders? Yes
7a Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members of the
governing body? 7a Yes
b Are any decisions of the governing body subject to approval by members, stockholders, or other persons? 7b Yes
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following
The governing body? 8a Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b Yes
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If“Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedule (o} 9 No
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal
Revenue Code.)
Yes No
10a Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a No
b If“Yes,” does the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization? 10b
11a Has the organization provided a copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?
11a Yes
b Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
12a Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,”go toline 13 12a | Yes
b Are officers, directors or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise
to conflicts? 12b | Yes
¢ Does the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how this 1s done 12c | Yes
13 Does the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 Yes
14 Does the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 Yes
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | Yes
Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | Yes
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (See instructions )
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? 16a | Yes
b If“Yes,” has the organization adopted a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate Its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b Yes

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make 1ts Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you make these available Check all that apply

[T ownwebsite | Another's website [ Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how), the organization makes its governing documents, conflict of
interest policy, and financial statements available to the public See Additional Data Table

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization &

MARY MEITZ
301 JOHN STREET
KALAMAZOO,MI 49007
(269) 341-6000

Form 990 (2010)
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Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VII

F

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s

tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation, and current key employees Enter-0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the

organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons in the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest

compensated employees, and former such persons

[~ Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(B)
Average
hours
per
week
(describe
hours
for
related
organizations
In
Schedule
0)

(A)

Name and Title

Q)
Position (check all
that apply)
o T
— | = 2o
Q =] Z > (L=
oz |2 =2
= = = ] 1
oo = i
oc |2 g S |mE |2
gE |z |E T 2|2
= o B = =R
e = - O
2| & £ | =2
=
BoE 5
=

(D)
Reportable
compensation
from the
organization (W-
2/1099-MISC)

(E)
Reportable
compensation
from related
organizations
(W-2/1099-
MISC)

(F)
Estimated
amount of other
compensation
from the
organization and
related
organizations

See Addritional Data Table

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)

Page 8

m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours that apply) compensation compensation amount of other
per from the from related compensation
o T
week _ — 2 G organization (W- organizations from the
(describe B a cf:; % %f__. 2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099- organization and
hours 2= 2 s - MISC) related
for 52 |z g g 0o o organizations
related gEe |z ||lga @ = |2
= o B = =R
organizations = = fir o=
in 3 | = b a
Schedule E é B
I >
0) =
See Addritional Data Table
ib Sub-Total A
[ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A *
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) * 1,469,689 8,901,402 381,450
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 inreportable compensation from the organization®198
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual « « « « « &« &« &« 2« &« « &« = 3 No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, 1s the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000°? If "Yes,” complete Schedule ] for such
individual = .« . & 4 4 4 e e w aw e mwmaw e w e w e a 4 Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson . .« .+ « 5 No

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization
(A) (B) ©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
KALAMAZOO ANESTHESIOLOGY
PO BOX 4095 MEDICAL SERVICES 2,522,115
KALAMAZOO, MI 49003
HEALTHCARE MIDWEST
4341 S WESTNEDGE AVENUE SUITE 220 MEDICAL SERVICES 1,303,672
KALAMAZOO, MI 49008
SW MI EMERGENCY SERVICES
1850 WHITES RD 3 MEDICAL SERVICES 976,978
KALAMAZOO, MI 49008
DEARBORN ADVISORS LLC
PO BOX 95152 MEDICAL SERVICES 526,690
PALATINE, IL 60095
PATHOLOGY SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
252 E LOVELL ST MEDICAL SERVICES 483,940
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 in compensation from the organization ®20

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010)
mvnu Statement of Revenue

Page 9

(A)

Total revenue

(B)
Related or
exempt
function
revenue

(C)
Unrelated
business
revenue

(D)
Revenue
excluded

from
tax
under
sections
512,
513, or
514

ifts, grants
r amounts

i

Contributions,
simi

ard other

l1a

Federated campaigns . . 1a
Membership dues . . . . 1ib
Fundraising events . . . . 1c
Related organizations . . . id
Government grants (contributions) 1e

All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 1f
similar amounts not included above

Noncash contnbutions included n lines 1a-1f $

Total. Add lines 1a-1f . . . . . . . *

21,600

21,600

Program Sarwce Revenue

2a

0 o o6 T

-

NET PATIENT REVENUE

Business Code

621500

513,172,445

513,172,445

PHARMACY REVENUE

446110

5,724,193

5,724,193

LABORATORY REVENUE

541380

4,333,586

4,333,586

All other program service revenue

Total. Add lines 2a-2f . . . . . . . .Mm

523,230,224

Other Revenue

6a

Investment income (including dividends, interest

and other similaramounts) . . . . . *

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , *

Royaltles............"'

7,332,176

7,332,176

(1) Real

(n) Personal

Gross Rents 3,175,362

Less rental 1,634,201
expenses

Rental iIncome 1,541,161
or (loss)

Net rental Income or (loss) . . . . . . . *

1,541,161

1,541,161

7a

(1) Securities

(n) Other

Gross amount
from sales of
assets other
than inventory

Less cost or
other basis and
sales expenses

Gain or (loss)

Netgainor(loss) . . . .+ .« .+ .« . . N

8a

Gross income from fundraising events
(not including

$
of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
See Part IV, line 18

Less direct expenses . . . b

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events . . *

Gross Income from gaming activities See PartIV, line 19
Less direct expenses

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . . -

10aGross sales of iInventory, less

returns and allowances
a

b Less costofgoodssold . . b

[

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . *

Miscellaneous Revenue

Business Code

1laCcAFETERIA

bOUTSIDE SERVICE REVENU

CJOINT VENTURE REVENUE

dAll other revenue

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d

12

Total revenue. See Instructions . . . *

722210

3,919,942

7,074

3,912,868

900099

3,518,330

3,518,330

900099

2,726,873

2,726,873

1,251,250

1,251,250

11,416,395

543,541,556

519,417,648

10,064,853

14,037,455

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)
m Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns.
All ot her organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Page 10

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) p (B) M (©) d E éD)
Total expenses rogram service anagement an undraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIL expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
inthe U S See PartIV,line21l
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
US See PartlIV,line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the U S See
Part IV, lines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 168,717 168,717
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described Iin section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 204,968,821 184,984,361 19,984,460
Pension plan contributions (include section 401 (k) and section
403(b) employer contributions) 9,769,645 8,817,105 952,540
9 Other employee benefits 35,535,525 32,070,811 3,464,714
10 Payroll taxes 12,179,152 10,991,685 1,187,467
a Fees forservices (non-employees)
Management
b Legal 1,095,364 988,566 106,798
c Accounting
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other 39,610,310 35,748,305 3,862,005
12 Advertising and promotion 74,899 67,596 7,303
13 Office expenses 67,078,772 60,538,592 6,540,180
14 Information technology 2,489 2,246 243
15 Royalties
16 Occupancy 8,934,294 8,063,200 871,094
17  Travel 642,451 579,812 62,639
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 429,706 387,810 41,896
20 Interest 12,253,881 11,059,128 1,194,753
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 27,776,048 25,067,883 2,708,165
23 Insurance 6,174,714 5,572,679 602,035
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24f Ifline 24f amount exceeds 10% of
line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24f expenses on Schedule O )
a DRUGS & PHARMACEUTICALS 27,673,365 24,975,212 2,698,153
b BAD DEBT EXPENSE 23,409,560 21,127,128 2,282,432
c¢ BHG SERVICE ALLOCATION 13,368,013 13,368,013
d EQUIPMENT MAINT/REPAIR 5,592,712 5,047,423 545,289
e SINGLE BUSINESS TAX EXP 175,000 157,938 17,062
f All other expenses 558,608 504,144 54,464
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24f 497,472,046 436,751,624 60,720,422 0
26 Joint costs. Check here & [ if following

SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs from a
combined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)

IEXTEEd Balance Sheet

Page 11

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 19,015 1 13,504
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 232,187,301 2 290,098,502
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4 Accounts receivable, net 81,227,202 4 73,187,157
5 Recelvables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and
highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L 5
6 Recelvables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 4958 (f)(1)),
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers, and
sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
organizations (see Instructions)
ﬂ Schedule L 6
% 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
=4 Inventories for sale or use 7,909,644| 8 8,019,231
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 409,975 9 859,320
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis Complete 558,548,267
Part VI of Schedule D 10a
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 286,980,676 280,364,248| 10c 271,567,591
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 11
12 Investments —other securities See PartIV,linel1l 39,783,009| 12 44,294 855
13 Investments—program-related See PartIV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV, line 11 6,443,413 15 4,890,560
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 648,343,807 16 692,930,720
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 36,746,619| 17 38,156,798
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 253,190,392| 20 277,485,300
E 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
E 22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
ﬁ employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
| persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities Complete Part X of Schedule D 41,650,499 25 29,584,661
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 331,587,510 26 345,226,759
™ Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here I [v" and complete lines 27
3 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
5 27 Unrestricted net assets 316,756,297 27 347,703,961
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 28
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here & [~ and complete
E lines 30 through 34.
-~ |30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
&n 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
o [33 Total net assets or fund balances 316,756,297 33 347,703,961
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 648,343,807| 34 692,930,720

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)
m Reconcilliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI

-

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), ine 12)
1 543,541,556
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 497,472,046
3 Revenue less expenses Subtract line 2 from line 1
3 46,069,510
4 Netassets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 316,756,297
5 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O)
5 -15,121,846
6 Netassets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3,4, and 5 (must equal Part X, line 33, column
(B)) . . . . . . 6 347,703,961
m Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII T
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "O ther," explain in
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
c If“Yes,”to 2aor2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an iIndependent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O 2c Yes
d If“Yes”toline 2a or2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were 1ssued
on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[~ Separate basis [T consolidated basis [v Both consolidated and separated basis
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? 3a No
b If“Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required| 3b
audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2010)
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DLN: 93493314014051]

SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

OMB No 1545-0047

2010

Open to Public
I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. * See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

Employer identification number

38-1359087

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions

The organization 1s not a private foundation because it 1s (Forlines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 [ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A )(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T Anorganization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part IT )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described In
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete PartII)

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [~ An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
recelpts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable iIncome (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety Seesection 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [T Typel b [T Typell [ [~ Type III - Functionally integrated d [~ Type III - Other
e [ By checking this box, I certify that the organization i1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS thatitis a Type I, Type II or Type III supporting organization,
check this box |_
g Since August 17,2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) a person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (i) Yes | No
and (1n) below, the governing body of the the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) a family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) a 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (11) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)
(iii) iv
Type of m) v) (vi)
(|) ~ organization organization in Did you notlfy the Is the (vii)
Name of (") (descnbed on I I d organization in organization in
col (1) hsted in | ¢ | d Amount of
supported EIN lines 1- 9 above col (1) of your col (1) organize
your governing 5 5 support
organization or IRC section document? support inthe U'S
(see
instructions)) Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction ActNotice, see the Instructions for Form 990

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2010 Page 2
EEETESE support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)

(A)(vi)
(Complete only If you checked the box on ine 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify
under Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning (a) 2006 (b) 2007

1

(c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total
in)

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f

Public Support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

) (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross income from Interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business Is regularly
carried on

Other income Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (ExplaininPartIV)

Total support (Add lines 7
through 10)

Gross recelpts from related activities, etc (See Instructions ) | 12 |

First Five Years If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501 (c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14
15
16a

17a

18

Public Support Percentage for 2010 (line 6 column (f) divided by line 11 column (f)) 14

Public Support Percentage for 2009 Schedule A, Part II, ine 14 15

33 1/3% support test—2010. If the organization did not check the box online 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization [
33 1/3% support test—2009. If the organization did not check the box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2010. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, or 16b and line 14

1Is 10% or more, and iIf the organization meets the "facts and circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain

In Part IV how the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2009. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a and line

151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts and circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.

Explain in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organization FI_
Private Foundation If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a or 17b, check this box and see
instructions [

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2010 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)
Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

) (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")

2 Gross recelpts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished In
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose

3 Gross recelpts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on its
behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts Iincluded on lines 1, 2,
and 3 received from disqualified
persons

b A mounts Iincluded on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

c Addlines 7aand 7b

8 Public Support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (°rf's)°a'yearbe9'””'”9 (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (F) Total
n

9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources

b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975

[ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business i1s regularly carried on

12 Other income Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IvV)

13 Total support (Add lines 9, 10¢c,
11 and 12)

14 First Five Years If the Form 990 s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public Support Percentage for 2010 (line 8 column (f) divided by line 13 column (f)) 15

16 Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part III, ine 15 16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investmentincome percentage for 2010 (line 10c column (f) divided by line 13 column (f)) 17

18 Investmentincome percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part III, line 17 18

19a 33 1/3% support tests—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 17 Is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

organization >

b 33 1/3% support tests—2009. If the organization did not check a box online 14 or line 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line
18 1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >

20 Private Foundation If the organization did not check a box online 14, 19a or 19b, check this box and see Instructions >

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or990-EZ) 2010 Page 4

-m Supplemental Information. Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations
required by Part II, ine 10; Part II, ine 17a or 17b; and Part III, line 12. Also complete this part for any
additional information. (See instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Additional Data

Software ID:

Software Version:

EIN:
Name:

38-1359087
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest
Compensated Employees, and Independent Contractors

(A) (B) () (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours that apply) compensation compensation amount of other
per o T from the from related compensation
week o= = 3@ organization (W- organizations from the
= o % E‘ﬁ 2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099- organization and
o= = L
= = =2 e MISC) related
oo |2 2 T |lnola
0O cC e | 2|3 a = organizations
EE |Z|T (T =N =
=2 T | 2|
SH AR
o
2| B
- [u
RANDALL EBERTS
0 2,768 0
VICE CHAIR 100 X
BARBARA JAMES 100 X 0 1,922 0
CHAIRPERSON
GEOFFREY WARDWELL 100 X 2,500 148 0
SECRETARY
FLOYD PARKS
0 1,937 0
TREASURER 100 X
EILEEN WILSON-OYELARAN 100 X 0 715 0
DIRECTOR
MARIJO SNYDER MD 100 X 19,333 709 0
PAST CHIEF OF STAFF
JAMES GUNDERSON
0 1,313 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
JAMES E GREENE
0 1,937 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
JOHN M DUNN
0 533 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
MARIAN KLEIN
0 0 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
DONALD PARFET
0 0 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
DANIEL R SMITH
0 0 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
CHARLES ZELLER MD 100 X 0 1,903 0
DIRECTOR
SCOTT GIBSON 100 X 38,402 2,541 0
PAST CHIEF OF STAFF
WILLIAM RICHARDSON 100 X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
WILLIAM JOHNSTON
0 0 0
DIRECTOR 100 X
BERNARD ROEHR MD 100 X 108,482 2,000 0
CHIEF OF STAFF
FRANK SARDONE
0 1,098,206 26,435
PRESIDENT & CEO 29 00 X X
KENNETH TAFT 28 00 X 0 596,657 29,179
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
JAMES FALAHEE 11 00 X 0 388,146 28,344
SR VP LEGAL & LEGISLATIVE
SCOTT LARSON MD 32 00 X 0 498,151 20,706
SRVP MEDICAL AFFAIRS,CMO
JOHN HAYDEN 28 00 X 0 324,501 26,755
VP, CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES
KATHLEEN HARRELSON 34 00 X 0 304,136 31,846
SRVP,CLINICAL OPERATIONS
NEIL JOHNSON 34 00 X 0 238,316 19,971
VP, PATIENT CARE SERV'S, C
JOHN JONES 10 00 X 0 270,493 26,793
SRVP,REGIONAL & PHYSICIA




Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest
Compensated Employees, and Independent Contractors

(A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours that apply) compensation compensation amount of other
per T T from the from related compensation
week o= = 3@ organization (W- organizations from the
= W % E‘ﬁ 2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099- organization and
o= = w =
= = = o~ | MISC) related
oo |2 _Q ¢ |[alo
0O cC e | 2|3 al® organizations
g8 |E|T |0 3|2
T | =TT o
C = - o7
z |2 nl oz
L4
5| B
T fu
MARY MEITZ 18 00 X 0 309,606 31,319
VP, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE
MIKE WAY 16 00 X 0 227,095 28,466
VP, MATERIALS MGMT & FACIL
BRATISLAV VELIMIROVIC 40 00 X 671,444 0 8,343
PHYSICIAN
ALAIN FABI
0 2,694,917 32,412
PHYSICIAN 4000 X
GREGORY WIGGINS
0 1,189,313 29,484
PHYSICIAN 4000 X
DARYL WARDER
0 743,439 23,115
PHYSICIAN 4000 X
SHELDON MALTZ
629,528 0 18,282
PHYSICIAN 4000 X
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SCHEDULE D OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 201 0

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990,

Department of the Treasury Part 1V, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, or 12. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Ik Attach to Form 990. I See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

38-1359087

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors 1n writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds may be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit [~ Yes [ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

Qa n T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)

l_ Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or pleasure) [T Preservation ofan historically importantly land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[T Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a-2d If the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year
Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c
Number of conservation easements included in (c¢) acquired after 8/17/06 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the taxable year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? I_ Yes I_ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting and enforcing conservation easements during the year &

Amount of expenses Incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year = $

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section
170(h)(4)(B)(1) and 170(h)(4)(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIV, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a Ifthe organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education or research in furtherance of public service,
provide, In Part XIV, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items
b Ifthe organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, to report in 1ts revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items
(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3
(i1) Assets included in Form 990, Part X 3
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 relating to these items
@ Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Intructions for Form 990 Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2010



Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 2
Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s accession and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply)
a [~ public exhibition d [T Loan orexchange programs
b l_ Scholarly research e l_ O ther

[ I_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in
Part XIV
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [ Yes [ No

m Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, ine 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [~ Yes ™ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the following table
A mount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [ No

b If“Yes,” explainthe arrangement in Part XIV

m Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a)Current Year (b)Prior Year (c)Two Years Back | (d)Three Years Back | (e)Four Years Back
1la Beginning of year balance
b Contributions
¢ Investment earnings or losses
Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs
f Administrative expenses
g End ofyearbalance
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the year end balance held as

a Board designated or quasi-endowment
b Permanent endowment &

€ Term endowment I
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . . . . & & 4 4 aaaw e e e e e e e | 3a(i)
(ii) related organizations . . . . . . & 4. 4 4 a4 e a e e e e e 3a(ii)
b If"Yes" to 3a(u), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b
4 Describe in Part XIV the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds
m Investments—Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of imvestment S Comarather | (B)Cosaratter | (€) Acumuted | (g) ok vate
1a Land . v v v v e e e e e e e e e 5,647,774 5,647,774
bBuldings . .+« . .+« « v e e e e e e 330,856,160 108,062,184 222,793,976
c Leasehold improvements
d Equipment . . . . v e e e e e e e 216,435,634 178,918,492 37,517,142
e Other . « & & & 4 e e e e e e e e e 5,608,699 5,608,699
Total. Add lines 1a-1e (Column (d) should equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), Iine 10(c).) . . . . .+ . . . m» 271,567,591

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010



Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 3
[EYix%:] Investments—Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (c) Method of valuation

(including name of security) (b)Book value Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives
(2)Closely-held equity interests
(3)Other
(A)RESTRICTED ASSETS HELD IN TRUST 33,276,960 F
(B) INVESTMENT IN CAYMICH 51,250 F
(C)WEST MICHIGAN CANCER CENTER 7,932,112 F
(D) KALAMAZOO CENTER FOR MEDICAL STUDIES 3,034,533 F
Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lme 12) ¥ 44,294,855

Investments—Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, ine 13.

(a) Description of Investment type

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lme 13) ¥

Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.)

Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of Liability (b) Amount

Federal Income Taxes

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 3,178,901
SWAP LIABILITY 9,145,431
THIRD PARTY CONTRACTUAL SETTLEMENTS 17,260,329
Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25 ) m 29,584,661

2.Fin48 (ASC 740) Footnote In Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC740)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010



Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 4
m Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Financial Statements

1 Total revenue (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 543,541,556
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 497,472,046
3 Excess or (deficit) for the year Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 46,069,510
4 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 4
5 Donated services and use of facilities 5
6 Investment expenses 6
7 Prior period adjustments 7
8 Other (Describe in Part XIV) 8 -15,121,846
9 Total adjustments (net) Add lines 4 - 8 9 -15,121,846
10 Excess or (deficit) for the year per financial statements Combine lines 3 and 9 10 30,947,664
miﬂl Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . 1 542,449,000
2 Amounts Iincluded on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12
a Net unrealized gains on Investments . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilittes . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Recoveries of prioryeargrants . . . . . . . .+ . . . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIV) . . .+ .+ « .+« « « « « .« . 2d
e Add lines 2athrough 2d P e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2e 0
3 Subtract ine 2efromlinel . . . . . . & . & & 4 44w a e e a e 3 542,449,000
Amounts Iincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 7b . da
Other (Describe in Part XIV) . . . .+ .+ « « .« « .« . 4b 1,092,556
[ Addlinesd4aanddb . . . . . . . . 4 44 e a e e e e e e 4c 1,092,556
5 Total Revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This should equal Form 990, PartI,linel12) . . . . . . 5 543,541,556
miﬂﬂ Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial 496,380,000
statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilittes . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . + . . . . 2b
c Otherlosses . . . .+ .+ « « .« « + 4 4 . .. . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIV) . . . . .« .+ « « « &« « 2d
e Add lines 2athrough2d . . . . . . . .+ .+ .+« & . & 4 44 a e e e 2e 0
3 Subtract ine 2efromline 1 . . . . . & &« &« 444w a e e e e e 3 496,380,000
Amounts Iincluded on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line7b . . da
Other (Describe in Part XIV) . . . . .« .+ « « « &« « 4b 1,092,046
[ Addlinesd4aanddb . . . . . . . . 4 44 e a e e e e e e 4c 1,092,046
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This should equal Form 990, PartI,line18) . . . . . . 5 497,472,046

m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3,5, and 9, PartIII, ines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
Part V, line 4, Part X, Part XI, line 8, Part XII, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XIII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any
additional information

Identifier Return Reference Explanation
DESCRIPTION OF UNCERTAIN PART X THE GROUP ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
TAX POSITIONS UNDER FIN 48 RELATED TO UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AND,

ACCORDINGLY, REVIEWED ALL TAX POSITIONS THE
EVALUATED POTENTIAL EXPOSURE RELATED TO
UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS WAS FOUND TO BE
IMMATERIAL

PART XI,LINE 8 - OTHER LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT -4,141,989 CHANGE
ADJUSTMENTS IN FAIR VALUE OF SWAP AGREEMENTS -2,325,845
TRANSFER TO AFFILIATE -1,000,000 LOSS ON INTEREST
RATE SWAP TERMINATIONS -7,654,012

PART XII,LINE 4B - OTHER ROUNDING -116 JOINT VENTURE INCOME 2,726,873
ADJUSTMENTS RENTAL EXPENSES -1,634,201
PART XIII,LINE 4B - OTHER ROUNDING -626 JOINT VENTURE INCOME 2,726,873
ADJUSTMENTS RENTAL EXPENSES -1,634,201

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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OMB No 1545-0047

SCHEDULE H Hospitals
(Form 990)

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, question 20.

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. I See separate instructions.

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

38-1359087

2010

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

m Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

Yes | No
1a Did the organization have a finnancial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No," skip to question 6a 1a | ves
b If"Yes," 1s it a written policy? ib | Yes
2 Ifthe organization has multiple hospitals, indicate which of the following best describes application of the financial
assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year
I7 Applied uniformly to all hospitals I_ Applied uniformly to most hospitals
I_ Generally tailored to individual hospitals
3 Answer the following based on the the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the
organization’s patients during the tax year
a Does the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) to determine eligibility for providing free care to low
income individuals? If "Yes," indicate which of the following 1s the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 3a | Yes
I_ 100% I_ 150% I7 200% I_ Other %
b Does the organization use FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted care to low income individuals? If
"Yes," indicate which of the following I1s the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 3b | Yes
I_ 200% I_ 250% I_ 300% I_ 350% I_ 400% I7 Other 0.0 %
¢ Ifthe organization does not use FPG to determine eligibility, describe in Part VI the income based criteria for
determining eligibility for free or discounted care Include in the description whether the organization uses an asset
test or other threshold, regardless of Income, to determine eligibility for free or discounted care
4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year] 4 Yes
provide for free or discounted care to the "medically indigent"? P e
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial assistance policy dunng the tax year? 5a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? 5b No
c If"Yes" to line 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or discounted
care to a patient who was eligibile for free or discounted care? 5c
6a Does the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax 6a | Yes
year?
6b If"Yes," did the organization make 1t available to the public? 6b | Yes
Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions Do not submit these
worksheets with the Schedule H
7 Financial Assistance and Certain O ther Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and | () Numberof | (py persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community benefit| (f) Percent of
Means-Tested Government| 2<tViies or served benefit expense revenue expense total expense
programs optional
Programs (optional) (op )
a Financial Assistance at cost
(from Worksheets 1 and 2) 9,454,635 0 9,454,635 1 900 %
b Unrembursed Medicaid (from
Worksheet 3, column a) 88,406,589 78,513,000 9,893,589 1990 %
¢ Unreimbursed costs—other
means-tested government
programs (from Worksheet 3,
column b) Ce e 0 0
d Total Financial Assistance and
Means-Tested Government
Progams . . . 97,861,224 78,513,000 19,348,224 3890 %
Other Benefit
e Community health mprovement
services and community
benefit operations (from
(Worksheet 4) 579,174 0 579,174 0120 %
f Health professions education
(from Worksheet 5) 20,955,923 4,821,254 16,134,669 3240 %
g Subsidized health services
(from Worksheet 6) 6,646,390 1,649,943 4,996,447 1 000 %
h Research (from Worksheet 7) 152,490 0 152,490 0 030 %
i Cash and in-kind contributions
to community groups
(from Worksheet 8) 635,374 0 635,374 0 130 %
j Total Other Benefits 28,969,351 6,471,197 22,498,154 4520 %
k Total. Add lines 7d and 7 126,830,575 84,984,197 41,846,378 8410 %

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50192T

Schedule H (Form 990) 2010
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Page 2

Im Community Building Activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building
activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities promoted the health

of the communities 1t serves.

(a) Number of (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent of
activities or  |served (optional) building expense revenue building expense total expense
programs
(optional)
1  Physical mprovements and housing
2 Economic development
3 Community support 346 346 0 %
4 Environmental improvements
Leadership development and training
for community members
Coalition building
Community health improvement
advocacy
8  Workforce development
9  Other
10  Total 346 346
m Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense Iin accordance with Heathcare Financial Management Assoclation
Statement No 157 . 1 |VYes
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense (at cost) 2 9,031,789
3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense (at cost)
attributable to patients eligible under the organization's financial assistance policy 3 2,360,600
4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes bad debt expense
In addition, describe the costing methodology used in determining the amounts reported on lines 2 and 3, and
rationale for including a portion of bad debt amounts as community benefit
Section B. Medicare
5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSH and IME) 5 158,045,000
6 Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to payments on line 5 6 161,436,960
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5 This 1s the surplus or (shortfall) 7 -3,391,960
8 Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community benefit
Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6
Check the box that describes the method used
I_ Cost accounting system I7 Cost to charge ratio I_ Other
Section C. Collection Practices
9a Does the organization have a written debt collection policy? 9a | Yes
b If"Yes," does the organization's collection policy contain provisions on the collection practices to be followed for
patients who are known to qualify for charity care or financial assistance? Describe in Part VI 9b No

Management Companies and Joint Ventures

(a) Name of entity (b) Descnption of pnmary

activity of entity

(c) Organization's
profit % or stock
ownership %

(d) Officers, directors,
trustees, or key
employees' profit %
or stock ownership%

(e) Physicians'
profit % or stock

ownership %

10

11

12

13

Schedule H (Form 990) 2010
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m Facility Information

. . R o m [ m
Section A. Hospital Facilities E 5:' = g ey = :Iu
(hst Iin order of size, measured by total revenue per facility, from Gg; i Ll |8 E =
largest to smallest) I T T = B - iy =

il =T I el - S R =2
1 EIEE
How many hospital facilities did the organization operate during o5 4|32 | = 5
the tax year? 1 2 | wlm |2 §'
& g
i} 2N
0
=
Name and address Other (Describe)
1 BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL
601 JOHN STREET X | x | x| x X

KALAMAZOO,MI 49001

Schedule H (Form 990) 2010



m Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Other Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility
(hst in order of size, measured by total revenue per facility, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address Type of Facility (Describe)

O O NGO U A WNR R

[
o

Schedule H (Form 990) 2010
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m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the following information

1 Required descriptions. Provide the description required for Part I, lines 3c, 6a,and 7, PartII, Part III, lines 4, 8, and 9b, and Part
V, Section B, lines 1), 3,4, 5c¢,61,7,11h,13g,15e,16e,17e,18d,19d,20,and 21

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any
needs assessments reported in Part V, Section B

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may
be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the
organization’s financial assistance policy

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic

constituents 1t serves

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e g , open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc )

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization I1s part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files

a community benefit report

Identifier

ReturnReference

Explanation

PART I, LINE7 COSTING METHODOLOGY ISA COSTTO
CHARGE RATIO AS DEFINED BY THE IRS INSTRUCTIONS
THE AMOUNT OF BAD DEBT EXCLUDED IS EQUALTO THE
IAMOUNT LISTED ON PAGE 2, PART III,LINE 4 RELATING
[TO BAD DEBT EXPENSE

PART II BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL'S COMMUNITY
BUILDING ACTIVITIES GENERALLY FALL WITHIN ONE OF
THE THREE AREAS COMMUNITY SUPPORT, COALITION
BUILDING, OR COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT IN
COMMUNITY SUPPORT, BRONSON SUPPORTED EARLY
CHILDHOOD LITERACY BY PROVIDING THE FAMILIES OF
EVERY NEWBORN A BOOKTO PROMOTE READING, BY
TRAINING AREA CLERGY IN PASTORAL CARE FORILL AND
END-OF-LIFE PATIENTS, BY STAFFING THE COUNTY SAFE
KIDS COALITION AND BY OFFERING HEALTH-RELATED
EDUCATIONAL SEMINARS THROUGHOUT THE
COMMUNITY BRONSON'S COALITION BUILDING
JACTIVITIES INCLUDE SUPPORTING A YOUTH RESIDENT
READING PROGRAM AT THE KALAMAZOO COUNTY
JUVENILE HOME COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT
HAS PRIMARILY INVOLVED PATIENT ADVOCACY
THROUGH CASE MANAGEMENT IN ADDITION, BRONSON
FINANCIALLY SUPPORTS THE COUNTY MEDICAL CONTROL
JAUTHORITY AND SITS ON THE WEST MICHIGAN CANCER
CENTER INSTITUTIONAL REVIEWBOARD EVALUATING
CANCER RESEARCH PROTOCOLS INVOLVING PATIENTS

PART III,LINE4 AN ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE
IACCOUNTS IS ESTABLISHED ON AN AGGREGATE BASIS BY
USING HISTORICAL WRITE-OFF RATE FACTORS APPLIED
TO UNPAID ACCOUNTS BASED ON AGING LOSS RATE
FACTORS ARE BASED ON HISTORICAL LOSS EXPERIENCE
IAND ADJUSTED FORECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OTHER
TRENDS AFFECTING THE HOSPITAL'S ABILITY TO
COLLECT OUTSTANDING AMOUNTS UNCOLLECTIBLE
IAMOUNTS ARE WRITTEN OFF AGAINST THE ALLOWANCE
FORDOUBTFULACCOUNTS IN THE PERIOD THEY ARE
DETERMINED TO BE UNCOLLECTIBLE AN ALLOWANCE FOR
CONTRACTUAL ADJUSTMENTS AND INTERIM PAYMENT
IWDVANCES IS BASED ON EXPECTED PAYMENT RATES
FROM PAYORS BASED ON CURRENT REIMBURSEMENT
METHODOLOGIES THIS AMOUNT ALSO INCLUDES
IAMOUNTS RECEIVED FORINTERIM PAYMENTS AGAINST
UNPAID CLAIMS BY CERTAIN PAYORS COSTING
METHODOLOGY ISA COST TO CHARGE RATIO AS DEFINED
BY THE IRS 990 INSTRUCTIONS BAD DEBT WRITEOFFS AT
COST SUPPORT THE COMMUNITY BY PROVIDING A
PORTION OF SERVICES WITHOUT PAYMENT A PORTION
OF BAD DEBT IS CONSIDERED COMMUNITY BENEFIT AS IT
REPRESENTS SERVICES RENDERED TO UNINSURED AND
UNDERINSURED PATIENTS

PART III,LINE 8 COSTING METHODOLOGY ISA COSTTO
CHARGE RATIO AS DEFINED BY THE IRS 990
INSTRUCTIONS SHORTFALL SHOULD BE CONSIDERED A
COMMUNITY BENEFIT DUE TO ITS REPRESENTATION OF
COST OF APORTION OF SERVICES PROVIDED TO THE
COMMUNITY WITHOUT PAYMENT

PART I, LINE 3B THE ORGANIZATION USES THE
FOLLOWING FPGTO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY FOR
PROVIDING DISCOUNTED CARETO LOWINCOME
INDIVIDUALS 225% OF FPLIS ENTITLED TO AN 80%
REDUCTION250% OF FPLIS ENTITLED TO A 60%
REDUCTION275% OF FPLIS ENTITLED TO A 40%
REDUCTION300% OF FPLIS ENTITLED TO A 20%
REDUCTION

PART VI, LINE2 BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL
UTILIZES A STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT MODELTO
DEVELOP BOTH A LONG TERM (3 YEAR)AND ANNUAL
STRATEGIC PLAN INPUTS INTO THE PLAN ARE
DOCUMENTED IN OUR STRATEGIC INPUT DOCUMENT ONE
OF THE IMPORTANT INPUTS INTO THIS PLAN IS THE
HEALTH OFOUR COMMUNITY SEVERAL SOURCES ARE
UTILIZED TO PERFORM THIS ASSESSMENT THE SOURCES
FOR THE LATEST (2008) STRATEGIC INPUT DOCUMENT
IARE LISTED BELOW SOURCES FOR DETERMINING
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS- MICHIGAN BEHAVIORAL
RISK FACTORS SURVEY 2002-2006 COMBINED BUREAU OF
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
COMMUNITY HEALTH- 2004 MICHIGAN SURGEON
GENERAL'S HEALTH STATUS REPORT (HEALTH MICHIGAN
2010)- FAS IN FAT HOW OBESITY IS FAILINGIN AMERICA
2009 - TRUST FOR AMERICA'S HEALTH AND ROBERT WOOD
JOHNSON FOUNDATION- MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
COMMUNITY HEALTH INFANT MORTALITY RATES,

2006 THE STRATEGIC INPUT DOCUMENT IS REVIEWED BY
[THE ENTIRE EXECUTIVE TEAM AND UTILIZED TO DEVELOP
OUR COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT AS WELL AS OUR
STRATEGIC ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES THE
COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT IS SHARED WITH THE BOARD
EVERY THREE YEARS USING OUR COMMUNITY
LEADERSHIP MODEL AS SHOWN BELOW THREE YEAR
PRIORITIES ARE THEN SET FOROUR COMMUNITY

HEALTH BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL ALSO
COLLABORATES WITH TWO KEY COMMUNITY AGENCIES
FOR THE GATHERING OF HEALTH STATISTICS THE
GREATER KALAMAZOO UNITED WAY AND KALAMAZOO
COUNTY HEALTH ANDHUMAN SERVICES IN ADDITION,
BRONSON HAS BEEN A LEADERIN THE FOLLOWING
COMMUNITY HEALTH COLLABORATIVES HEALTHY
FUTURES, IMMUNIZE-BY-TWO, HEALTHY BABIES/HEALTHY
START, READY TO READ, AFRICAN-AMERICAN HEALTH
INITIATIVE, YOUTH VIOLENCE COALITION, HEALTH
CONNECT AND EMERGENCY PRESCRIPTION PROGRAM

PART VI, LINE 3 SELFPAY INPATIENTS ARE REFERRED TO
IAN AGENCY FOR SCREENING FOR MEDICAID, MEDICARE,
IAND OTHER ELIGIBILITY A SOFTWARE PROGRAM ALSO
HELPS DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY FOR CHARITY CARE

PART VI,LINE 4 BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL
SERVES A NINE COUNTY REGION IN SOUTHWEST
MICHIGAN ABOUT 60% OF PATIENTS SERVED COME
FROM WITHIN KALAMAZOO COUNTY AND THE OTHER 40%
COME FROM THE REGIONAL COUNTIES OF ALLEGAN,
BARRY, BERRIEN, BRANCH, CASS, VAN BUREN, CALHOUN,
AND ST JOSEPH PATIENT DEMOGRAPHICS 25 05% <21
YEARS OF AGE 19 3% 21-39 YEARS OF AGE26 44% 40-64
YEARS OF AGE 29 21% 65 YEARS OF AGE AND OLDER
PATIENT DIVERSITY DEMOGRAPHICS 81 15%
CAUCASIAN10 89% AFRICAN-AMERICANS 38%

OTHER2 21% LATINO/HISPANIC O 37% ASIAN PATIENT
INSURANCE DEMO GRAPHICS 39 2% PRIVATE INSURANCE
30 9% MEDICARE21 5% MEDICAID OR OTHER PUBLIC
ASSISTANCE 5 1% MEDICARE AND SUPPLEMENTAL
INSURANCE 3 3% NO COVERAGE

PART VI,LINE 6 BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL (BMH)
ISA COMMUNITY-OWNED AND GOVERNED NOT FOR
PROFIT HOSPITAL WITH 404 LICENSED BEDS AND AN
OPEN MEDICAL STAFF IT IS GOVERNED BY THE BRONSON
HEALTHCARE GROUP BOARD COMPRISED OF 16 MEMBERS
OF THE COMMUNITY FOUNDED IN 1900, BMH HAS AS ONE
OF ITS FIVE CORE VALUES, "COMMITMENT TO OUR
COMMUNITY" AND HAS HISTORICALLY DEMONSTRATED
[THIS VALUE BY CONTINUING TO DELIVER THE FULL
CONTINUUM OF NEEDED MEDICAL SERVICES AND

WO RKING WITHIN COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVES TO
IADDRESS COMMUNITY NEEDS BMH PROVIDES A
DISAPROPORTIONATE AMOUNT OF CARE TO THE
SEGMENT OF THE POPULATION USING MEDICAID WE ARE
THE LARGEST MEDICAID PROVIDER OF ANY LARGE
HOSPITAL IN MICHIGAN OUTSIDE OF THE DETROIT AREA
(ON A PERCENTAGE BASIS) IN 2010, APPROXIMATELY
21% OF BMH'S PATIENTS WERE MEDICAID RECIPIENTS
WE HAVE THREE MEDICAID ENROLLERS ON SITE TO HELP
[THOSE WITHOUT INSURANCE ENROLL IN MEDICAID, OR
REFER THEM TO COMMUNITY RESOURCES MUCH OF BMH'S
SERVICE TO THE COMMUNITY IS DIRECTED AT WOMEN'S
IAND CHILDREN'S NEEDS BRONSON IS THE ONLY
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL IN SOUTHWEST MICHIGAN AND,
THEREFORE, THE SOLE PROVIDER OFINPATIENT
PEDIATRICS INCLUDING PEDIATRIC INTENSIVE CARE
IAND NEONATALINTENSIVE CARE IN FACT,OVER HALF
THE PATIENTS IN THE CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL ARE
MEDICAID RECEPIENTS AS A REGIONAL PERINATAL
CENTER, BMH IS ALSO THE REGIONAL DESTINATION FOR
HIGH-RISK PREGNANCY CARE BMH'S LEVEL 1 TRAUMA
CENTER AND BURN CENTER, ALONG WITH ADVANCED
CAPABILITIES IN NEUROVASCULARAND
CARDIOVASCULAR CARE, SERVE ALL PATIENT
POPULATIONS REGARDLESS OF ABILITY TO PAY SERVICE
TO COMMUNITYIN RECENT YEARS, BMH COLLABORATIVES
HAVE INCLUDED HEALTHY FUTURES (BROAD COMMUNITY
INITATIVETO ADDRESS HEALTH AND ECONOMIC
ISSUES), HEALTHY BABY/HEALTHY START (REDUCE
INFANT MORTALITY), IMMUNIZE-BY-TWO, HEALTH
CONNECT (PROVIDE COMMUNITY-WIDE PRIMARY CARE
IACCESS) AND THE AFRICAN-AMERICAN HEALTH
INITIATIVE (HEALTH PROMOTION AND SCREENING
PROGRAM OFFERED THROUGH KALAMAZOO'S AFRICAN-
IAMERICAN FAITH COMMUNITY) IN 2010, BMH
DOCUMENTED IN EXCESS OF 22,000 EVENTS IN
PROVIDING COMMUNITY BENEFIT ACTIVITIES WITH NET
VALUE OF APPROXIMATELY $55,000,000 IN COMMUNITY
BENEFIT ACTIVITES ADDRESSING DISPARITIESBMH IS
LOCATED IN THE HEART OF DOWNTOWN KALAMAZOO,
MICHIGAN AND IS THE CITY'S LARGEST EMPLOYER BMH
OPENED A NEWREPLACEMENT HOSPITALIN DECEMBER
OF 2000 ACROSS THE STREET FROM ITS PREVIOUS
FACILITY THIS LOCATION WAS CHOSEN BECAUSE OF
IANOTHER OF BRONSON'S CORE VALUES, "CARE AND
RESPECT FOR ALL PEOPLE "BMH IS LOCATED WHERE
PEOPLE MOST IN NEED CAN UTILIZE OUR SERVICES AND
IACCESS US THROUGH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION THE
IALIGNMENT OF OUR MISSION, VISION AND VALUES
CREATES AN ENVIRONMENT WHERE ALL PERSONS ARE
WELCOME AND PATIENTS ARE TREATED REGARDLESS OF
THEIR ABILITY TO PAY FOR EXAMPLE, BRONSON'S
TRAUMA AND EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT SEES OVER
85,000 PATIENT VISITS PERYEAR IN ADDITION, BMH'S
OUTREACH SERVICES WITH THE FEDERALLY QUALIFIED
FAMILY HEALTH CENTER PROVIDE FOR AN IMPROVED
CONTINUUM OF CARE FORPATIENTS WHO ARE ON
MEDICAID ORARE UNDER-INSURED COMMUNITY HEALTH
STATUSBMH COLLABORATES WITH TWO KEY COMMUNITY
PARTNERS FOR THE GATHERING OF HEALTH STATISTICS
THE GREATER KALAMAZOO UNITED WAY AND KALAMAZOO
COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES THESE TWO
ORGANIZATIONS, ALONG WITH BMH, AND THE FAMILY
HEALTH CENTER REGULARLY DISCUSS HEALTH NEEDS
IAND EMERGING HEALTH TRENDS THIS COLLABORATIVE,
IAN OFF-SHOOT OF HEALTHY FUTURES, MONITORS
KALAMAZOO COUNTY'S PERFORMANCE AGAINST
HEALTHY PEOPLE 2010 GOALS IT WAS THESE
COMMUNITY HEALTH INDICATORS THAT INITIATED
HEALTHY BABY/HEALTHY START,IMMUNIZE-BY-TWO AND
THE AFRICAN-AMERICAN HEALTH

INITIATIVE COLLABORATION WITH COMMUNITY
STAKEHOLDERSAS PREVIOUSLY MENTIONED, BMH SEEKS
COMMUNITY COLLABORATORS AND STAKEHOLDERS AS
PARTNERS IN MEETING COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS
TOWARDS THIS END, BMH ADMINISTRATORS SERVE ON
SEVERALCOMMUNITY BOARDS INCLUDING THE FAMILY
HEALTH CENTER, UNITED WAY, SALVATION ARMY,
MINISTRY WITH COMMUNTIY, NEIGHBORHOOD
IASSOCIATIONS, GREATER KALAMAZOO UNITED WAY,
FAMILY AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES, HOSPICE CARE OF
SOUTHWEST MICHIGAN, DOUGLAS COMMUNITY
IASSOCIATION AND THE SAFE KIDS COLLABORATIVE,
(WHICH BMH STAFFS) BMH HAS A THREE-PRONG
IAPPROACH FOR COMMMUNITY LEADERSHIP FOCUSING ON
COMMUNITY HEALTH, COMMUNITY SERVICE AND
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY HEALTH
INITIATIVES- IMPROVING ACCESS TO HEALTHCARE-
IMPROVING OVERALL COMMUNITY HEALTH- CITIZEN-
BASED EDUCATION AND RESEARCH ON HEALTH
OUTCOMES- REDUCE DISPARITIES IN HEALTH OUTCOMES
- THE RECENT FOCUS WAS ON CHILDHOOD SAFETY AND
PREVENTION AND ACCESS/SCREENING/EDUCATION-
COLLABORATE WITH SOCIAL SERVICES AGENCIES AN
EXAMPLE OF IMPROVING ACCESS BMH HAS WORKED
WITH COMMUNITY AGENCIES TO REDUCE BARRIERS AND
IMPROVE ACCESS FORUNDERSERVED POPULATIONS THE
HOSPITAL CO-FUNDS A GRADUATE MEDICAL RESIDENCY
PROGRAM WITH NINE SUBSPECIALTIES AND AN
IAMBULATORY CLINIC WITH 70,000 PATIENT VISITS
IANNUALLY IN ADDITION,BMH HAS A LEADERSHIP ROLE
AT KALAMAZOO FAMILY HEALTH CENTER THAT HAS
35,000 PATIENT VISITS PER YEAR COMMUNITY SERVICE
- PARTICIATE IN PUBLIC AND NOT-FOR-PROFIT
COMMITTEES AND BOARDS- PARTICIPATE IN IMPORTANT
COMMUNITY ISSUES- LEAD DISASTER/EMERGENCY
EFFORTS- PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT AND
SPONSORSHIPS FORARTS AND HUMAN SERVICES
ORGANIZATIONSAN EXAMPLE OF AN EMPLOYEE-DRIVEN
EFFORT REFLECTIVE OF OUR VALUES, BMH EMPLOYEES
DONATE THOUSANDS OFPOUNDS OFFOOD TO THE
IANNUAL HARVEST GATHERING FOOD DRIVE, WHICH
REPLENISHES LOCAL FOOD PANTRIES IN 2010, WE
COLLECTED 39,500 POUNDS OF FOOD, MAKING US THE
LARGEST CONTRIBUTORIN THIS STATEWIDE INITIATIVE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - SUPPORT GRASSROOT
NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT- STIMULATE ECONOMIC
VITALITY- INVEST IN EDUCATIONALINSTITUTIONSTO
ENSURE ACCESS TO HEALTHCARE CURRICULUM (WMU
BRONSON SCHOOL OF NURSING)- COMMIT TO LOCAL
VENDORS AND BUSINESSES AN ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT EXAMPLE WOULD BE OURBRONSON HOME
OWNERSHIP PROGRAM (BHOP) SINCE 1998, BRONSON
HAS INVESTED $317,525 TO HELP EMPLOYEES PURCHASE
HOMES DOWNTOWN, CLOSETO THE BRONSON CAMPUS
OUR PROGRAM IS A LOAN,EMPLOYEES START PAYING US
BACK IN YEAR SIX, AT NO INTEREST WHAT IS COLLECTED
IAND THEN RE-LOANED THUS FAR,OUR $317,525 HAS
RESULTED IN $381,126 BEING LOANED TO 45 EMPLOYEES
THIS IS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AT THE
NEIGHBORHOOD LEVEL BMH IDENTIFIES WAYS TO TREAT
THE DISEASES FACED BY THOSE WE SERVE, AND ALSO
SEEK WAYS TO FOSTER AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH WE
CAN CREATE HEALTH AND PREVENTION MEASURES THIS
INCLUDES LOOKING AT OURCOMMUNITIES' ECONOMIC
ISSUES, SUCH AS PEOPLE WITHOUT HEALTH INSURANCE,
JAND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES, SUCH AS CLEAN AIRAND
WATER BMH HAS BEEN ACKNOWLEDGED BY PRACTICE
GREENHEALTH (FORMERLY HOSPITALS FOR A HEALTHY
ENVIRONMENT) AWARDS FOR9 YEARSIN A ROW, IN
RECOGNITION OF SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS IN REDUCING
WASTE, PREVENTING POLLUTION AND ELIMINATING
MERCURY BMH ALSO HOLDS THE ENERGY STAR LABEL FOR
ENERGY EFFICIENCY FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY, AND HAS BEEN NAMED ONE OF
IAMERICA'S TOP 10 HOSPITALS BY THE "GREEN GUIDE"
PUBLICATION BECAUSE OF THIS, WE ALSO PLAY A
SIGNIFICANT ROLE IN MANY COMMUNITY
ORGANIZATIONS THAT HAVE A BROADER FOCUS THAN
HEALTHCARE REPORTING TO THE COMMUNITY BMH
CONDUCTS AN ANNUAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT INVENTORY
TO AGGREGATE THE NON-MISSION MANDATED SERVICES
WE PROVIDE TO THE COMMUNITY THIS INVENTORY IS
SHARED WITH BRONSON STAKEHOLDERS AND REPORTED
TO THE COMMUNITY INFORMATION IS ALSO AVAILABLE
THROUGH BRONSONHEALTH COM EXAMPLES INCLUDE
QUALITY REPORT, NURSING OUTCOMES, PATIENT
SATISFACTION DATA, AND LINKS TO PUBLIC REPORTING
WEBSITES

PART VI, LINE7 BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL IS
PART OF AN AFFILIATED SYSTEM THAT INCLUDES TWO
OTHER HOSPITALS, BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL AND
BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL ALL OF THESE
HOSPITALS ARE OWNED BY BRONSON HEALTHCARE
GROUP, WHICH IS A COMMUNITY-OWNED AND GOVERNED
NOT-FOR-PROFIT HOLDING COMPANY THE BRONSON
HEALTHCARE GROUP(BHG) BOARD IS COMPRISED OF 16
MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY EACH OF THE THREE
HOSPITALS IN THE BHG SYSTEM IS GOVERNED BY A
COMMUNITY BOARD, COMPRISED OF AN OPEN MEDICAL
STAFF, AND ADMITS PATIENTS REGARDLESS OF ABILITY
[TO PAY BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL IS BY FARTHE
LARGEST OF THE THREE HOSPITALS IN THE BHG SYSTEM
IAS SUCH,IT HAS A LARGER ROLE IN PROMOTING THE
HEALTH OF THE MANY COMMUNITIES IT SERVES THAN
BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL AND BRONSON
LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL THE HEALTH PROMOTION
IACTIVITIES OF BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL ARE
DESCRIBED IN LINE #6 ABOVE

REPORTS FILED WITH STATES

PART VI, LINE 7

MI
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

2010

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, .
Department of the Treasury Part IV, question 23. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service & Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

38-1359087

Employer identification number

m Questions Regarding Compensation

l1a

Check the appropiate box(es) iIf the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete PartIII to provide any relevant information regarding these items

[T First-class or charter travel [T Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[T Travel for companions [ Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [T Health or social club dues or initiation fees

[ Discretionary spending account [T Personal services (e g , maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes In line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement orprovision of all the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
officers, directors, trustees, and the CEO /Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a?

Indicate which, If any, of the following the organization uses to establish the compensation of the

organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply

I_ Compensation committee I_ Written employment contract
[ Independent compensation consultant [ Compensation survey or study
[T Form 990 of other organizations [T Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization

Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment from the organization or a related organization?
Participate in, or recelve payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate in, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part II1

Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed in form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of

The organization?

Any related organization?

If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III

For persons listed in form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of

The organization?

Any related organization?

If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described inlines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe In Part III

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regs section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
in Part IT1

If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)?

Yes | No
1ib
2 Yes
da No
4b | Yes
4c No
5a No
5b No
6a No
6b No
7 No
8 No
9

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Intructions for Form 990 Cat No 500537 Schedule ] (Form 990) 2010
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m Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions on row (1) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII

Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)- (1) must equal the applicable column (D) or column (E) amounts on Form 990, Part VII, line 1a

(A) Name (B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation
(i) Bonus & (iiii) Other other deferred benefits (B)(1)-(D) reported in prior
(i) Base compensation Form 990 or
compensation incentive reportable P
compensation compensation Form 990-EZ
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1) FRANK SARDONE
(1) (m) 628,958 295,480 173,768 10,731 15,704 1,124,641 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2)KENNETH TAFT
(2) (m) 394,456 126,191 76,010 10,731 18,448 625,836 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3)JAMES FALAHEE
(3) (m) 240,623 80,568 66,955 10,731 17,613 416,490 0
(4) SCOTT LARSON m 0 ) ) ) ) 0 0
MD (m) 316,170 109,341 72,640 6,763 13,943 518,857 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5)JOHN HAYDEN
(5) (m) 222,397 67,687 34,417 10,320 16,435 351,256 0
(6) KATHLEEN (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HARRELSON (m) 237,137 57,004 9,995 10,721 21,125 335,982 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7)NEILJOHNSON
) (m) 201,007 35,968 1,341 2,772 17,199 258,287 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8)JOHN JONES
(8) (m) 204,482 46,753 19,258 9,499 17,294 297,286 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9) MARY MEITZ
®) (m) 250,137 58,053 1,416 10,731 20,588 340,925 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10) MIKE WAY
(10) (m) 176,591 34,614 15,890 8,398 20,068 255,561 0
(11) BRATISLAV (M 130,650 540,594 200 3,381 4,962 679,787 0
VELIMIROVIC (n) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12)ALAIN FABI
(12) (m) 986,547 1,706,597 1,773 10,731 21,681 2,727,329 0
(13) GREGORY (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WIGGINS (m) 657,489 530,884 940 10,731 18,753 1,218,797 0
(M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14) DARYL WARDER
(14) (m) 741,479 123 1,837 3,381 19,734 766,554 0
(15) SHELDON MALTZ (M 548,098 52,112 29,318 282 18,000 647,810 0
(m) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(16)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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.m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8 Also complete this part for any additional information

Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
PART I, LINE |[HEALTH CLUB DUES AND/OR SPOUSAL TRAVEL TO BOARD RETREAT ARE AVAILABLE FORBOARD OF DIRECTORS (ATKINSON, DUNN, EBERTS,
1A GIBSON, GREENE, GUNDERSON, JAMES, PARKS, ROEHR, SNYDER, WARDWELL, WILSON-OYELARAN, AND ZELLER) ALL TREATED AS TAXABLE

FRINGE BENEFITS - 1099'S SENT

PART I, LINE |[PARTICIPATED IN,OR RECEIVED PAYMENT FROM, A SUPPLEMENTAL NON-QUALIFIED RETIREMENT PLAN FROM RELATED ENTITY BRONSON
4B HEALTHCARE GROUP FRANK SARDONE - $151,847 SERP CONTRIBUTION FRANK SARDONE - $425,188 SERP DISTRIBUTION KEN TAFT -
$68,794 SERP CONTRIBUTION KEN TAFT - $108,285 SERP DISTRIBUTION JOHN HAYDEN -$29,281 SERP CONTRIBUTION JAMES FALAHEE -
$47,538 SERP CONTRIBUTION JAMES FALAHEE - $114,681 SERP DISTRIBUTION SCOTT LARSON - $58,032 SERP CONTRIBUTION SCOTT
LARSON - $37,998 SERP DISTRIBUTION

SUPPLEMENTAL PART III SCHEDULE J, PART II, COLUMN(B)(III) AND FARE AMOUNTS THAT WERE PAID TO THE EXECUTIVE UNDER THE BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP,
INFORMATION INC SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN("SERP") THESE AMOUNTS WERE CREDITED TO AN ACCOUNT FORTHE EXECUTIVE IN
PRIOR YEARS AND WERE PREVIOUSLY REPORTED IN COLUMN CIN THE PRIORYEAR,BUT THE EXECUTIVE WAS REQUIRED TO REMAIN
EMPLOYED UNTIL THE YEAR FOR WHICH THIS FORM IS BEING FILED IN ORDERTO BECOME VESTED IN HIS ORHERACCOUNT AMOUNTS HAVE
BEEN CREDITED TO THESE EXECUTIVES' ACCOUNTS EACH YEARSINCE THE SERP WAS ADOPTED IN 1994, AND THE ACCOUNTS HAVE ALSO
BEEN ADJUSTED FOR GAINS AND LOSSES SINCE THAT TIME THEREFORE, THESE AMOUNTS SHOULD BE VIEWED AS HAVING BEEN EARNED
OVER THE EXECUTIVE'S ENTIRE PERIOD OF EMPLOYMENT AS AN EXECUTIVE OF BRONSON THE AMOUNT CREDITED TO EACH EXECUTIVE'S
ACCOUNT IN THE SERP EACH YEARAND EACH EXECUTIVE'S TOTALCOMPENSATION PACKAGE WAS APPROVED BY AN INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT TO ENSURE THAT THESE AMOUNTS ARE COMPARABLE TO ORLESS THAN THE AMOUNTS AWARDED TO EXECUTIVES OF
COMPARABLE HEALTH CARE ORGANIZATIONS FOR THE CURRENT REPORTING YEAR NO AMOUNTS THAT ARE REPORTED IN COLUMN B(III)
WERE REPORTED IN A PREVIOUS YEAR RETURN, THEREFORE NO AMOUNTS ARE REPORTED IN COLUMN (F)

SUPPLEMENTAL PART III SCHEDULE J PART I, LINE 3 BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP, A RELATED ORGANIZATION, USES A COMPENSATION COMMITTTEE,
INFORMATION INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT, COMPENSATION SURVEY ORSTUDY AND/OR APPROVAL BY BOARD AND/ORCOMPENSATION
COMMITTEE TO ESTABLISH THE COMPENSATION OF THE ORGANIZATION'S CEO/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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Schedule K
(Form 990)

Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,
explanations, and any additional information in Schedule O (Form 990).
k- Attach to Form 990. Ik See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

38-1359087
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(g) Defeased Behalf of (i) Pool
(a) Issuer Name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date Issued (e) Issue Price (f) Description of Purpose Issuer financing
Yes No Yes No Yes No
CITY OF KALAMAZOO
HOSPITAL FINANCE REFUNDING OUTSTANDING
A AUTHO RITY 38-6004627 483233LQ3 04-30-2008 93,622,103 BONDS X X X
CITY OF KALAMAZOO
HOSPITAL FINANCE REFUNDING OUTSTANDING
B AUTHO RITY 38-6004627 483233MA7 09-28-2010 192,508,168 BONDS X X X
IEXITEH Proceeds
A B C D
1 Amount of bonds retired 12,780,000 68,620,000
2 Amount of bonds legally defeased
3 Total proceeds of Issue 93,632,103 192,588,783
a Gross proceeds In reserve funds
5 Capitalized interest from proceeds
6 Proceeds In refunding escrow 17,366,719 17,366,719
7 Issuance costs from proceeds 718,703 2,389,449
8 Credit enhancement from proceeds
9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds 14,080,615 14,080,615
11 Other spent proceeds 92,903,400 158,752,000
12 Other unspent proceeds
13 Year of substantial completion 2003 2010
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
14 Were the bonds Issued as part of a current refunding issue? X X
15 Were the bonds Issued as part of an advance refunding issue? X X
16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X X
allocation of proceeds?
Private Business Use
A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Was the organization a partnerin a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned X X
property financed by tax-exempt bonds?
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond- X X
financed property?

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50193E

Schedule K (Form 990) 2010



Schedule K (Form 990) 2010 Page 2

[XYEE::] Private Business Use (Continued)

A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business X X
use?
b Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond- X X
financed property?
c Does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other outside counsel to review
any management or service contracts orresearch agreements relating to the financed X X
property?
a Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government 0 % 0950 %
[
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section 0 % 0 %
501(c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of ines 4 and 5 0 % 0950 %
Has the organization adopted management practices and procedures to ensure the
X X
post-issuance compliance of its tax-exempt bond liabilities?
[EXIEY] Arbitrage
A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has a Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, Yield Reduction and
Penalty in Lieu of Arbitrage Rebate, been filed with respect to the
bond issue?
X
2 Is the bond i1ssue a variable rate issue? X
3a Has the organization or the governmental issuer entered
into a hedge with respect to the bond issue?
X
b Name of provider
Term of hedge
d Was the hedge superintegrated?
e Was a hedge terminated?
da Were gross proceeds invested ina GIC? X
b Name of provider
Term of GIC
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market
value of the GIC satisfied?
5 Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary
period? X
6 Did the bond 1ssue qualify for an exception to rebate?
X

.m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions)

Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

PART I LINE F BOND ISSUE A WAS ISSUED TO CURRENTLY REFUND A PRIORISSUE WITH AN ORIGINALISSUE DATEOF 11/13/03 THE BONDS ISSUED ON
BOND ISSUE A - [11/13/03 WERE ISSUED TO REFUND A PRIORISSUE THAT WAS ISSUED BEFORE 1/1/03
DESCRIPTION

OF PURPOSE
SCHEDULE K BOND ISSUE A WAS ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 11/13/2003, AND WAS REISSUED FOR FEDERALINCOME TAX PURPOSES ON 4/30/08 THE
PART I, LINE INFORMATION REPORTED IN SCHEDULE K FORBOND ISSUE A IS FORTHE BONDS AS REISSUED ON 4/30/2008
D
PART I LINE F PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE B WERE USED TO CURRENTLY REFUND PRIORISSUES ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 5/13/98,6/14/06 AND 3/25/09
BOND ISSUEB - |ADDITIONAL PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE B WERE USED FORBUILDING RENOVATIONS, AND OTHER MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT
DESCRIPTION
OF PURPOSE
PART I LINE D BOND ISSUE B CONSISTS OF TWO SERIES OF BONDS SERIES 2006 AND SERIES 2010 THE SERIES 2006 BONDS WERE ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON
DATE ISSUED 6/14/06 AND WERE REISSUED FOR FEDERALINCOME TAX PURPOSES ON 9/28/10 THE INFORMATION REPORTED ON SCHEDULE K FORBOND
ISSUEBIS FORTHE SERIES 2006 BONDS AS REISSUED ON 9/28/10 AND THE SERIES 2010 BONDS AS ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 9/28/10
PART II, LINE TOTAL PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE BINCLUDE INVESTMENT EARNINGS IN THE AMOUNT OF $80,615
3
See Additional
Data Table

Schedule K (Form 990) 2010



BEXEYA Supplemental Information

D

Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
PART I LINE F BOND ISSUE A WAS ISSUED TO CURRENTLY REFUND A PRIORISSUE WITH AN ORIGINALISSUE DATEOF 11/13/03 THE BONDS ISSUED ON
BOND ISSUE A - [11/13/03 WERE ISSUED TO REFUND A PRIOR ISSUE THAT WAS ISSUED BEFORE 1/1/03
DESCRIPTION
OF PURPOSE
SCHEDULE K BOND ISSUE A WAS ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 11/13/2003, AND WAS REISSUED FOR FEDERALINCOME TAX PURPOSES ON 4/30/08 THE
PART I, LINE INFORMATION REPORTED IN SCHEDULE K FORBOND ISSUE A IS FORTHE BONDS AS REISSUED ON 4/30/2008

PART I LINE F
BOND ISSUE B -
DESCRIPTION
OF PURPOSE

PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE B WERE USED TO CURRENTLY REFUND PRIORISSUES ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 5/13/98,6/14/06 AND 3/25/09
ADDITIONAL PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE B WERE USED FOR BUILDING RENOVATIONS, AND OTHER MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT

PART I LINE D
DATE ISSUED

BOND ISSUE B CONSISTS OF TWO SERIES OF BONDS SERIES 2006 AND SERIES 2010 THE SERIES 2006 BONDS WERE ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON
6/14/06 AND WERE REISSUED FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES ON 9/28/10 THE INFORMATION REPORTED ON SCHEDULE K FORBOND
ISSUE BIS FOR THE SERIES 2006 BONDS AS REISSUED ON 9/28/10 AND THE SERIES 2010 BONDS AS ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON 9/28/10

PART II, LINE

3

TOTAL PROCEEDS OF BOND ISSUE BINCLUDE INVESTMENT EARNINGS IN THE AMOUNT OF $80,615
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 201 0

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
k- Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

Employer identification number

38-1359087

Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART V|,
SECTION A, LINE 2

JAMES GUNDERSON, JOHN M DUNN, AND DANIEL R SMITH, HAVE A BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP
KENNETH TAFT AND FRANK SARDONE HAVE A BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF BRONSON METHODIST
LINES HOSPITAL




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART V|,
SECTION A, LINE 7A

BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP (BHG) IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF BRONSON METHODIST
HOSPITAL (BMH)AND AS SUCH MEMBER IT ELECTS THE MAJORITY OF THE BMH BOARD




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART V|,
SECTION A, LINE 7B

BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP (BHG) IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF BRONSON METHODIST
HOSPITAL (BMH), HAS CERTAIN RESERVED POWERS OVER THE ACTIONS OF BMH




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990,
PART V|,
SECTION B,
LINE 11

THE CFO AND CONTROLLER REV IEWED THE 990'S MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIVES (COO AND
CONTROLLER) MET WITH THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD ON OCTOBER 11, 2011 TO REVIEW THE PREPARED
FORM 990 AND SCHEDULES THE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD THOROUGHLY REVIEWED THE
PREPARED FORM 990 AT ITS REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING ON OCTOBER 24, 2011 THE REVIEW WAS
LED BY THEV P OF FINANCE/CFO, THE CONTROLLER AND PLANTE & MORAN THE MEMBERS OF THE
ORGANIZATION'S GOV ERNING BODY WERE PROV IDED THE PREPARED FORM 990 FOR REV IEW




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 990, THE ORGANIZATION REGULARLY AND CONSISTENTLY MONITORS AND ENFORCES COMPLIANCE WITH THE
PART V]|, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND ITS ACCOMPANY ING QUESTIONNAIRE
SECTION B, ARE REVIEWED, AND REVISED, IF NECESSARY, ON AN ANNUAL BASIS BY THE ORGANIZATION'S GENERAL
LINE 12C COUNSEL/CORPORATE COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND THE BOARD'S EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ALL BOARD

MEMBERS AND ALL EMPLOY EES HOLDING THE TITLE OF VICE PRESIDENT AND ABOVE ARE COVERED BY THE
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND ANNUALLY COMPLETE THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE ALL
COMPLETED CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRES ARE REVIEWED BY THE ORGANIZATION'S GENERAL
COUNSEL/CORPORATE COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DETERMINATIONS AS TO
WHETHER A CONFLICT EXISTS ARE MADE BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL/CORPORATE COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTUAL CONFLICTS ARE REVIEWED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL/CORPORATE
COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PERSONS WITH A CONFLICT ARE PROHIBITED FROM
PARTICIPATING IN THE GOVERNING BODY'S DELIBERATIONS AND DECISIONS ON THE TRANSACTION IN
QUESTION




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 990, FOR THE CEO, OFFICERS AND OTHER KEY EMPLOY EES, THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF
PART V]|, DIRECTORS, WHICH FUNCTIONS AS THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE, RETAINS THE SERVICES OF AN EXTERNAL
SECTION B, | EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION CONSULTANT (SULLIVAN, COTTER AND ASSOCIATES) WHO CONDUCTS A
LINE 15 THOROUGH COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT SURVEY PROCESS THAT IS USED TO DETERMINE THE APPROPRIATE

ADJUSTMENT IN CASH COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED THIS PROCESS WAS UNDER TAKEN IN 2010
THE CONSULTANT USES THREE TO FIVE NATIONAL HEALTHCARE-BASED SERVICES FOR COMPARABILITY
DATA, EACH ONE OF LIKE REVENUE SIZED HEALTHCARE SY STEMS TO THE BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP
THE CONSULTANT PREPARES A DETAILED REPORT WITH RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PAY AND/OR BENEFIT
ADJUSTMENTS, AND PRESENTS THE INFORMATION TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS (WHEN THE CEO'S SURVEY DATA AND RECOMMENDATIONS ARE PRESENTED, THE CEO AND STAFF
ARE EXCUSED FROM THE DELIBERATIONS) AFTER ALL QUESTIONS OF THE BOARD MEMBERS ARE ANSWERED,
FORMAL MOTIONS ARE PROPOSED, SECONDED AND VOTED ON (FOR ANY PAY ADJUSTMENTS AND FOR
RECEIPT OF THE CONSULTANT'S REPORT) AT THE SUBSEQUENT MEETING OF THE FULL BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
THE CHAIR PRESENTS RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIV E COMMITTEE, AND THE FULL BOARD ACTS ON A
FORMAL MOTION THAT IS SECONDED AND VOTED ON




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART
VI, SECTION C,
LINE19

THE ORGANIZATION MAKES ITS GOV ERNING DOCUMENTS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY
AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC BY POSTING THEM ON THE ORGANIZATION'S WEBSITE AND PROV IDING
COPIES ON REQUEST THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE ATTACHED TO THE FORM 990
AND ARE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

PART VIl - THESE INDIV IDUALS WERE COMPENSATED BY BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP (BHG) AND WORKED
THE FOLLOWING HOURS PER WEEK FOR BHG RANDALL EBERTS(BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR BARBARA JAMES
(BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR GEOFFREY WARDWELL(BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR FLOY D PARKS (BOARD
MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR EILEEN WILSON-OY ELARAN (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR MARIJO SNY DER, MD (BOARD
MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR JAMES GUNDERSON (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR JAMES E GREENE (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0
HOUR JOHN M DUNN (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR CHARLES ZELLER, MD (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR SCOTT
GIBSON (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR BERNARD ROEHR, MD (BOARD MEMBER) 1 0 HOUR FRANK SARDONE
(BOARD MEMBER AND OFFICER) 7 0 HOURS KENNETH TAFT (OFFICER) 6 0 HOURS JAMES FALAHEE (OFFICER)
26 0 HOURS SCOTT LARSON, MD (OFFICER) 4 0 HOURS JOHN HAY DEN (OFFICER) 10 0 HOURS KATHLEEN
HARRELSON (KEY EMPLOY EE) 4 0 HOURS NEIL JOHNSON (KEY EMPLOY EE) 6 0 HOURS JOHN JONES (KEY
EMPLOY EE) 20 0 HOURS MARY MEITZ (KEY EMPLOYEE) 10 0 HOURS MIKE WAY (KEY EMPLOYEE) 4 0 HOURS
BOARD MEMBERS ARE VOLUNTEERS AND NOT COMPENSATED FOR THEIR TIME AND ANY REPORTABLE
COMPENSATION LISTED IN PART VI REPRESENTS BOARD MEETING TRAVEL FOR SPOUSE AND/OR HEALTH CLUB
DUES THESE INDIV IDUALS WERE COMPENSATED BY BRONSON PRACTICE MANAGEMENT AND WORKED THE
FOLLOWING HOURS PER WEEK FOR BPM ALAIN FABI (HIGHEST COMPENSATED EMPLOY EE) 1 0 HOUR GREGORY
WIGGINS (HIGHEST COMPENSATED EMPLOY EE) 1 0 HOUR DARY L WARDER (HGHTEST COMPENSATED
EMPLOYEE) 1 0 HOUR




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
CHANGES IN NET FORM 990, LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT -4,141,989 CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF SWAP
ASSETS OR FUND PART X|, LINE5 | AGREEMENTS -2,325,845 TRANSFER TO AFFILIATE -1,000,000 LOSS ON INTEREST RATE

BALANCES

SWAP TERMINATIONS -7,654,012 TOTAL TO FORM 990, PART X|, LINES -15,121,846




Jefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS

| As Filed Data - |

DLN: 93493314014051

SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

I Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35, 36, or 37.

= Attach to Form 990.

Ik See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

Name of the organization
BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

38-1359087

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

IEEREE 1dentification of Disregarded Entities (Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.)

(a)

Name, address, and EIN of disregarded entity

(b)

Primary activity

(c)
Legal domicile (state
or foreign country)

(d)

Total iIncome

(e)

End-of-year assets

Direct controlling
entity

IEEYTEil Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.)

(9)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) Section 512(b)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling (13) controlled
or foreign country) (If section 501(c)(3)) entity organization
Yes No
(1) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP
PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES
601 JOHN STREET FOR HEALTHCARE MI 501(C)(3) 11C [N/A No
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007 SUBSIDIARIES
38-2418383
(2) BRONSON HEALTH FOUNDATION
601 JOHN STREET SUPPORTS HEALTHCARE MI 501(C)(3) 7 gﬁ%ﬁiON HEALTHCARE Yes
ORGANIZATION
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
38-2415081
(3) BRONSON LAKEVIEW HOSPITAL
BRONSON HEALTHCARE
601 JOHN STREET HOSPITAL MI 501(C)(3) 3 |GROUP Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
38-1359218
(4) BRONSON NURSING AND REHABILITATION CENTER
BRONSON HEALTHCARE
601 JOHN STREET SKILLED NURSING FACILITY MI 501(C)(3) 9 |GROUP Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
38-2842451
(5) VBEMS
BRONSON HEALTHCARE
601 JOHN STREET AMBULANCE SERVICE MI 501(C)(3) 9 |GROUP Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
38-2745910
(6) BRONSON PROPERTIES CORPORATION
PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES BRONSON HEALTHCARE
601 JOHN STREET BOX 26 FOR HEALTHCARE MI 501(C)(3) 11B |GROUP Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007 SUBSIDIARIES
38-6052573
(7) BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL
BRONSON HEALTHCARE
601 JOHN STREET HOSPITAL MI 501(C)(3) 3 |GROUP Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI 49007
38-2610349

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50135Y

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010 Page 2

IEXYTEi#d Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because 1t had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.)

(a) (c) (e (h) (O] (6))
(b) Legal (d) () (g) Disproprtionate Code V—UBI General or
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity domicile Direct controlling Predominant income Share of total iIncome | Share of end-of-year | allocations? amount n box 20 of managing (k)
of (related, unrelated, _ 5 Percentage
(state or entity assets Schedule K-1 partner
related organization excluded from tax ownership
foreign (Form 1065)
under sections 512-
country) 514)
Yes No Yes No
(1) HOSPITAL NETWORK
INC LEASING
0,
6212 AMERICAN AVENUE |SYPPORT SERVICES MI  |N/A RELATED 4,654 283,665 No No 11 500 %
PORTAGE, MI49002
38-3638430
(2) HOSPITAL NETWORK
SUPPORT SERVICES
6212 AMERICAN AVENUE SUPPORT SERVICES MI N/A RELATED -19,470 No No 11 500 %
PORTAGE, MI49002
38-3627704
(3) HOSPITAL NETWORK
VENTURES LLC
SUPPORT SERVICES MI N/A RELATED 433,444 2,022,210 No No 11 500 %

6212 AMERICAN AVENUE
PORTAGE, MI49002
26-3302979

IEXYSETA Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f (9) (h)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile Direct controlling Type of entity Share of total income Share of Percentage

(state or entity (C corp, S corp, end-of-year ownership
foreign or trust) assets
country)

(1) BRONSON MANAGEMENT SERVICES CORPORATION BRONSON

601 JOHN STREET OTHER MEDICAL

KALAMAZOO, MI49007 SERVICES MI HEALTHCARE GROUP (€

38-2415032

(2) BRONSON LIFESTYLE IMPROVEMENT AND RESEARCH BRONSON

601 JOHN STREET REHABILITATION

KALAMAZOO, MI49007 SERVICES MI HEALTHCARE GROUP €

38-3552556

(3) BRONSON STAFFING SERVICE BRONSON

601 JOHN STREET HOME HEALTH CARE

KALAMAZOO, MI49007 MI HEALTHCARE GROUP |C

38-3277697

(4) BRONSON PRACTICE MANAGEMENT BRONSON

601 JOHN STREET OTHER MEDICAL

KALAMAZOO, MI49007 SERVICES MI HEALTHCARE GROUP €

38-2511179

(5) HOSPITAL NETWORK INC

6212 AMERICAN AVENUE OTHER MEDICAL B o

PORTAGE, MI49002 SERVICES MI N/A ¢ 16,394 11500 %

38-2625715

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010 Page 3

IEEERA Transactions With Related Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35, 35A, or 36.)

Note. Complete line 1 If any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III orlIV Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage 1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties (iv) rent from a controlled entity la No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to other organization(s) 1ib No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from other organization(s) 1c | Yes
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for other organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by other organization(s) le No
f Sale ofassets to other organization(s) 1f No
g Purchase of assets from other organization(s) 1g | Yes
h Exchange of assets 1h No
i Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to other organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets from other organization(s) 1j No
k Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for other organization(s) 1k | Yes
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by other organization(s) 1l | Yes
m Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets im No
n Sharing of paid employees 1n | Yes
o Reimbursement paid to other organization for expenses 1o No
Reimbursement paid by other organization for expenses 1p No
q Othertransfer of cash or property to other organization(s) 1q | Yes
r Othertransfer of cash or property from other organization(s) 1r | Yes

2 Ifthe answer to any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(b) (d)

(a) Transaction (c) Method of determining amount
Name of other organization Amount involved
type(a-r) involved

(1)

See Addritional Data Table

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010 Page 4

IEEITXZl Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.)

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross
revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()] (9) (h)
Name, address, and EIN of entity Primary activity Legal domicile Are all Share of Disproprtionate Code V—UBI General or
(state or foreign partners end-of-year allocations? amount In box managing
country) section assets 20 of Schedule K-1 partner?
501(c)(3) (Form 1065)

organizations?

Yes No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010

Page B

m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Identifier

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Additional Data

Software ID:

Software Version:

EIN:
Name:

38-1359087

BRONSON METHODIST HOSPITAL

Form 990, Schedule R, Part II - Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations

Return to Form

KALAMAZOO, MI49007
38-2610349

(c) (e) (9)
d
(a) (b) Legal domicite | o D1 public chanity (f) Section 512
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity (state status Direct controlling (b)(13)
section controlled
or foreign (if section 501 entity
country) (€)(3)) organization
Yes No
BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP PROVIDE SUPPORT
601 JOHN STREET SERVICES FOR MI 501(C)(3) 11C |N/A No
HEALTHCARE
KALAMAZOO, MI49007 SUBSIDIARIES
38-2418383
BRONSON HEALTH FOUNDATION
SUPPORTS BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET HEALTHCARE MI 501(C)(3) 7 [HEALTHCARE GROUP |Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI49007 ORGANIZATION
38-2415081
BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL
BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET HOSPITAL MI 501(C)(3) 3 |[HEALTHCARE GROUP |[Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI49007
38-1359218
BRONSON NURSING AND REHABILITATION CENTER
BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET i:él_llﬁ_?YNURSING MI 501(C)(3) 9 |[HEALTHCARE GROUP |Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI49007
38-2842451
VBEMS
BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET AMBULANCE SERVICE MI 501(C)(3) 9 |[HEALTHCARE GROUP |Yes
KALAMAZOO, MI49007
38-2745910
BRONSON PROPERTIES CORPORATION PROVIDE SUPPORT
SERVICES FOR BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET BOX 26 MI 501(C)(3) 11B [HEALTHCARE GROUP |Yes
HEALTHCARE
KALAMAZOO, MI49007 SUBSIDIARIES
38-6052573
BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL
BRONSON
601 JOHN STREET HOSPITAL MI 501(C)(3) 3 |[HEALTHCARE GROUP |[Yes



Form 990, Schedule R, Part V - Transactions With Related Organizations

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of other organization Transaction Amount Involved
type(a-r) ($) Method of determining

Yp amount involved

(1) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP N 166,324/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(2) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP L 96,403,036 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(3) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP G 56,017/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(4) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP G 105,590/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(5) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP K 11,941,745|METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(6) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP N 170,325|METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(7) BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL K 342,983 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(8) BRONSON VICKSBURG HOSPITAL N 50,087| METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(9) BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL N 232,199 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(10) BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL L 170,672|METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(11) BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL K 621,476 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(12) BRONSON LAKEVIEWHOSPITAL N 861,213 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(13) BRONSON HEALTH FOUNDATION Q 685,586 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(14) BRONSON PRACTICE MANAGEMENT N 7,139,267/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(15) BRONSON PRACTICE MANAGEMENT L 2,013,346/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(16) BRONSON PRACTICE MANAGEMENT N 89,148/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(17) BRONSON STAFFING SERVICES N 3,724,955 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(18) BRONSON STAFFING SERVICES K 95,053 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(19) BRONSON PROPERTIES CORPORATION L 4,465,986| METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(20) BRONSON PROPERTIES CORPORATION K 3,073,154 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(21) BRONSON LIFESTYLE & IMPROVEMENT CENTER L 2,748,197/ METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST

(22) BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP Q 1,000,000 METHOD BASED ON
ACTUAL COST
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Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante
V—- 534 Front Avenue N W
Grand Rapids MI 19504

mOran Tel 616 774 8221
Fax 616 774 0702

plantemoran com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Bronson Methodist Hospital

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Bronson Methodist Hospital (the "Hospital")
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related statements of operations and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Hospital's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Bronson Methodist Hospital at December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

744«-:&/ f 77(«&4—«/, PLLL

April 20, 201 |

Praxity ;

GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF
INDOPENDENT FIRMS



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Balance Sheet
(amounts in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68915 $ 38,169
Investments (Note 10) 221,197 194,037
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 74,655 82,867
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,878 8,320
Total current assets 373,645 323,393
Assets Limited as to Use (Notes 4 and 10)
Internally designated for capital improvements 15,310 15,310
Funds held by trustee under bond indenture 14,788 10,583
Funds held for payment of employee benefits 3,179 3,337
Total assets limited as to use 33,277 29,230
Property and Equipment - Net (Note 9) 271,567 280,364
Other Assets
Investment In joint ventures (Note 17) 10,966 10,490
Bond issue costs 2,950 4,325
Other noncurrent assets 524 542
Total assets $ 692,929 $ 648,344
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 9431 $ 9,267
Accrued liabilities and other (Note | 1) 28,725 27,480
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 12) 5,456 8,242
Estimated third-party payor settlements (Note 6) 17,260 23,801
Total current liabilities 60,872 68,790
Long-term Debt - Net of current portion (Note 12) 272,030 244,949
Fair Value of Interest Rate Swap Agreement
(Notes 3, 4, and 13) 9,145 14,512
Other Liabilities 3,179 3,337
Total liabilities 345,226 331,588
Net Assets - Unrestricted 347,703 316,756
Total liabilities and net assets $ 692,929 $ 648,344

See Notes to Financial Statements. 2



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009
Operating Revenue
Net patient service revenue $ 523230 $ 513,034
Investment gain (loss) 7,332 (1,408)
Other 11,887 10,202
Total operating revenue 542,449 521,828
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 205,137 194,136
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 57,484 56,312
Other 170,319 169,953
Depreciation and amortization 27,776 27811
Provision for bad debts 23410 19,429
Interest expense 12,254 12,928
Total operating expenses (Note 16) 496,380 480,569
Operating Income 46,069 41,259
Nonoperating Gain (Loss)
Loss on interest rate swap terminations (Note |3) (7,654) -
Change 1n fair value of interest swap agreements (Note |3) (2,326) 21,619
Loss on extinguishment of debt (4,142) (167)
Total nonoperating (loss) gain (14,122) 21,452
Excess of Revenue Over Expenses 31,947 62,711
Transfer to Affiliate (1,000) -
Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets 30,947 62,711
Net Assets - Beginning of year 316,756 254,045
Net Assets - End of year $ 347,703 $ 316,756

See Notes to Financial Statements. 3



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase In unrestricted net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase In unrestricted net assets to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of equipment
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Provision for bad debts
Loss on Interest rate swap termination
Loss (gain} on interest rate swaps
Equity in earnings of joint ventures
Changes In assets and liabilities which (used) provided cash:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Bond issue costs and other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other lhabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net advances to Bronson Healthcare Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Increase In assets limited as to use
Increase In pooled investment funds

Investment In joint ventures
Net cash used In Investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations
Principal payment on long-term debt
Issuance of bond financing costs

Payment to terminate Interest rate swap agreement

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year

Supplemental Cash Flow Information - Cash paid for interest

See Notes to Financial Statements. 4

Statement of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009
$ 30,947 62,711
27,776 27,811
- 179
4,142 167
23,410 19,429
7,654 -
2,326 (21,619)
(2,727) 4,161)
(15,198) (28,951)
(558) (1,064)
19 5,540
164 2,716
1,245 6,062
(6,541) 6,342
(373) 431
72,286 75,593
(18,736) (23,883)
- 8
- 22,763
(4,047) (7,954)
(27,160) (33,800)
2,250 5,499
(47,693) (37,367)
189,260 70,743
(165,616) (79,013)
(2,359) (451)
(15,132) -
6,153 (8,721)
30,746 29,505
38,169 8,664
$ 68,915 38,169
$ 11,102 13,359




Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
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The mission, values, commitment to patient care excellence, and philosophy of nursing excellence provide the
foundation that supports Bronson's organizational strategy, which is illustrated in the vision to be a national leader in
healthcare quality and the three Cs or corporate strategies: Clinical Excellence, Customer and Service Excellence, and
Corporate Effectiveness. Excellence is the thread that ties together the vision, mission, values, commitment to patient
care excellence, philosophy of nursing excellence, and overall strategies. These elements, comprising the Plan for
Excellence above, form the culture and guide decision-making.

5



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note | - Nature of Business

Bronson Methodist Hospital (the "Hospital") is a regional medical center and teaching
hospital providing acute-care medical and surgical services. The Hospital, located in
Kalamazoo, Michigan, has 429 beds, 25 of these leased to Select Specialty Hospital -
Kalamazoo, Inc. under an agreement that expires in 2011, and provides services to the
greater Kalamazoo and southwestern Michigan communities. Admitting physicians are
primarily practitioners in the local area. The Hospital is exempt from federal income
taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Bronson Healthcare Group, Inc. (the "Group") controls the Hospital's net assets and
operations.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include cash and investments
in highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less,
excluding those amounts included in assets limited as to use.

Investments - The Hospital's cash equivalents and investments are maintained in a
pooled investment fund held by the Group. Requests for withdrawals from the fund are
generally honored on demand at the amount deposited, minus withdrawals, plus
earnings credited while on deposit. The fund's investment policy allows for investments
in such securities as U.S. government obligations, commercial paper, bankers'
acceptances, certificates of deposit, marketable equity securities, money market funds,
and privately held alternative investments. Earnings of the fund are credited to
investment participants on a pro rata basis when realized. Aggregate investment
earnings and realized gains and losses from the fund for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 were approximately $7,332,000 and $(1,408,000), respectively.

Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest,
and dividends) is included in income from operations unless the income or loss is
restricted by donor or law.

The Group has agreed to indemnify the Hospital from any market value fluctuations in
the pooled investment fund. Accordingly, investments and cash equivalents, including
assets limited as to use, except for funds held by the bond trustee and deferred
compensation, are stated at cost plus allocated earnings, including realized gains and
losses, which approximates their redemption value from the Group.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates
using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly
affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates on future
cash flows. The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying
value of the Hospital; instead, they represent point-in-time estimates that might not be
particularly relevant in predicting the Hospital's future earnings on cash flows. All
financial instruments held or issued by the Hospital are considered trading.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable for patients, insurance companies, and
governmental agencies are based on gross charges. An allowance for uncollectible
accounts is established on an aggregate basis by using historical write-off rate factors
applied to unpaid accounts based on aging. Loss rate factors are based on historical loss
experience and adjusted for economic conditions and other trends affecting the
Hospital's ability to collect outstanding amounts. Uncollectible amounts are written off
against the allowance for doubtful accounts in the period they are determined to be
uncollectible. An allowance for contractual adjustments and interim payment advances
is based on expected payment rates from payors based on current reimbursement
methodologies. This amount also includes amounts received as interim payments
against unpaid claims by certain payors.

Assets Limited as to Use - Assets limited as to use include assets designated by the
board of trustees for future capital improvement, over which the board retains control,
assets held by trustees under bond indenture agreements, and funds held in trust for
payment of employee benefits.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment amounts are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset
and is computed using the straight-line method. Interest cost incurred on borrowed
funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of
the cost of acquiring those assets.

Professional and Other Liability Insurance - The Hospital accrues an estimate of the
ultimate expense, including litigation and settlement expense, net of applicable
reinsurance coverage, for incidents of potential improper professional service and other
liability claims occurring during the year as well as for those claims that have not been
reported at year end.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue - Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated
net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue adjustments based upon audits,
reviews, and adjustments by third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are considered
in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period such adjustments
become known or as years are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and
adjustments. Management believes that adequate provision has been made in the
financial statements for any adjustments that may result from final settlements.

The majority of the Hospital's services are under fixed provisions of third-party payment
programs (primarily Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan). Net
patient service revenue from the Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross programs
accounted for approximately 63 percent of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for
2010 (67 percent for 2009). Under these provisions, payment rates for patient care are
determined prospectively on the various bases, and the Hospital's net patient service
revenue is limited to such amounts. Payments are also received for capital and medical
education costs subject to certain limits. Additionally, the Hospital has entered into
payment arrangements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payments to the
Hospital under these arrangements includes prospectively determined rates per
discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates.
Net patient service revenue for such arrangements is recorded at the amount expected
to be realized upon payment for such services.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that it is in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. Final determination of compliance of such laws and
regulations is subject to future government review and interpretation.

Derivative and Hedging Activities - Accounting standards require that derivative
instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and establishes criteria for
designation and effectiveness of hedging relationships. The Hospital utilizes various
interest rate swap agreements to manage the economic impact of fluctuations in interest
rates.

Tax Status - The Hospital is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization, and is exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and, accordingly, no tax provision is reflected in the financial statements.

The Hospital has adopted accounting standards related to uncertain tax positions and,
accordingly, reviewed all tax positions. The evaluated potential exposure related to
uncertain tax positions was found to be immaterial.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events - The financial statements and related disclosures include
evaluation of events up through and including April 20, 2011, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

New Accounting Pronouncements - During 2010, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) adopted new accounting guidance that will impact how
healthcare organizations account for claims liabilities and charity care. The new
guidance requires that the accrued liability for malpractice claims and similar liabilities
and the related insurance recovery receivable be presented separately on the balance
sheet on a gross basis. Prior guidance allowed the liability to be reported net of the
estimated insurance recovery receivable. This new standard will be effective for the
first annual period beginning after December 15, 2010 and interim periods within that
first annual period.

New guidance has also been adopted on how to measure the amount of charity care
provided to patients. The new guidance requires that cost be used as the measurement
basis for charity care disclosure purposes and that the cost be identified as the direct
and indirect costs of providing the charity care. No other measurement basis should be
used. Prior guidance did not dictate how charity care should be measured. This new
standard will be effective for the first annual period beginning after December 15, 2010
and should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented.

The Hospital is currently assessing the impact these new standards will have on its
financial statements.
Note 3 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments - The carrying amount reported in the
balance sheet approximates its fair value.

Accounts Receivable, Estimated Third-party Payor Settlements, Accounts
Payable, and Accrued Liabilities - The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet
approximates its fair value.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 3 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Interest Rate Swap - The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is based on a
mark-to-market calculation of the notional amount of the interest rate swap.

Long-term Debt - The carrying amount of the Hospital's long-term variable rate debt
approximates its fair value. The fair value of the Hospital's long-term fixed rate debt is
estimated using quoted market values.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Hospital's financial instruments are as

follows:
Carrying
Amount Fair Value
(in thousands)
December 31, 2010 - Long-term debt $ 277,486 $ 264,360
December 31, 2009 - Long-term debt 253,191 252,750

Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the
financial statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The
framework for determining fair value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
and valuation techniques used to measure fair value.

The following tables present information about the Hospital’s assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the
valuation techniques used by the Hospital to determine those fair values.

In general, fair values determined by Level | inputs use quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Hospital has the ability to access.

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly. These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, and other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that
are observable at commonly quoted intervals. Level 2 investments include interests in
pooled investment funds, corporate bonds, and United States government agency notes.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations
where there is little, if any, market activity for the related asset or liability.

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above
fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The Hospital’s assessment of
the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment
and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.
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Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

During 2010, the Hospital adopted, on a prospective basis, new accounting standards
which require disclosure of fair value by major class of investments.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In

Active Markets  Significant Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
Assets - Assets imited as to use
Funds held by trustee under
bond indenture - Money
market funds and corporate
securities $ 2,964 $ 11,824 $ - $ 14,788
Funds held for payment of
employee benefits -
Domestic mutual funds 3,179 - - 3,179
Total assets mited as
to use 6,143 % 11,824 3% - $ 17,967
Liabilities - Interest rate swaps $ N $ 9,145 % N $ 9.145

The fair value of corporate securities was determined primarily based on Level 2 inputs.
The Hospital estimates the fair value of these investments using quoted prices for
similar assets in active markets. The fair value of these assets was determined primarily
based on quoted market prices from the Hospital's custodial banks.

The fair value of the interest rate swap liability was determined primarily based on Level
2 inputs. The Hospital estimates the fair value of the interest rate swap liability using
current interest rates and pricing indices. The fair value of the liability was determined

primarily based on estimated fair values as calculated by the counterparty.

The Hospital's investments and assets limited as to use that are internally designated for
capital improvements are invested in the Bronson Investment Fund. These assets are
reported at cost and therefore not included in the information in the above table. See
Notes | and 10 for additional information related to the Bronson Investment Fund.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2009
Assets - Assets imited as to use
Funds held by trustee under
bond indenture $ 7425 $ 3,158 § - $ 10,583
Funds held for payment of
employee benefits 3,337 3,337
Total assets imited as
to use $ 10,762 $ 3,158 $ = $ 13,920
Liabilities - Interest rate swaps $ - $ 14512 % - $ 14,512

Note 5 - Patient Accounts Receivable

The details of patient accounts receivable are set forth below

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Patient accounts receivable $ 130,528 $ 137,120
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (6,191) (4,413)
Less allowance for contractual adjustments (51,150) (51,480)
Net patient accounts receivable 73,187 81,227
Other 1,468 1,640
Total accounts recelvable $ 74655 $ 82,867

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to patients, most of whom are local
residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements The composition of

recelvables from patients and third-party payors was as follows

Percentage
2010 2009
Medicare 17 17
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan 11 14
Medicaid 29 31
Commercial insurance 29 25
Self-pay 14 13
Total 100 100

12



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 6 - Estimated Third-party Payor Settlements

A significant amount of the Hospital's net patient service revenue Is received from the
Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan programs The Hospital has
agreements with third-party payors that provide for rembursement at amounts
different from established rates A summary of the basis of reimbursement with these
third-party payors follows

Medicare - Inpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid
at prospectively determined rates per discharge These rates vary according to a
patient classification system based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors
Outpatient and homecare services related to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed
based on a prospectively determined amount per episode of care Payments are
also recelved for capital and medical education costs subject to certain imits

Medicaid - Inpatient, acute-care services rendered to Medicaild program
beneficiaries are also paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge Capital
costs relating to Medicaid patients are paid on a cost reimbursement method
Outpatient and physician services are reimbursed on an established fee-for-service
methodology

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan - Inpatient, acute-care services are
reimbursed at prospectively determined rates per discharge Outpatient services
are reimbursed on fee-for-service and percentage-of-charge bases

Other Third-party Payors - The Hospital has also entered into agreements with
certain commercial carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred
provider organizations The basis for reimbursement to the Hospital under these
agreements I1s discounts from established charges, prospectively determined rates
per discharge, and prospectively determined daily rates

Cost report settlements result from the adjustment of interm payments to final
reimbursement under the Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan
programs that are subject to audit by fiscal intermediaries As a result, there Is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount In the
near term
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Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 6 - Estimated Third-party Payor Settlements (Continued)

The Medicare program has initiated a Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) initiative,
whereby claims subsequent to October |, 2007 will be reviewed by contractors for
validity, accuracy, and proper documentation. The Hospital is unable to determine the
extent of the liability for overpayments or underpayments found in an audit. The
potential exists for significant overpayments or underpayments of claims liability for the
Hospital at a future date.

Note 7 - Charity Care and Other Uncompensated Care

In support of its mission, the Hospital provides various health-related services, at a loss,
to the indigent and other residents in its service area. Charity care is determined based
on established policies, using patient income and assets to determine payment ability.
Other uncompensated care represents the provisions for uncollectible accounts which
represent services rendered to uninsured and underinsured patients.

The estimated amounts of charity and other uncompensated care are as follows:

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Charges forgone, based on established rates $ 24506 $ 24,776
Other uncompensated care 23,410 19,429

In addition, under arrangements with various governmental insurance programs, the
Hospital provides significant care to the local indigent population for which
reimbursement for services rendered is generally less than the cost of providing such
services. As part of its obligation to the local communities, the Hospital also provides
numerous other services that benefit the communities.

Note 8 - Net Patient Service Revenue - Unaudited

Net patient service revenue is composed of the following:

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Gross charges $ 1,151,972 $ 1,094,490
Less total contractual deductions and other provisions 628,742 581,456
Net patient service revenue $ 523,230 $ 513,034




Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 9 - Property and Equipment

Cost of property and equipment is summarized as follows:

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Land $ 5647 $ 5,605
Buildings and improvements 330,856 326,472
Equipment 216,436 207,992
Construction in progress 5,609 1,607
Total cost 558,548 541,676
Accumulated depreciation (286,981) (261,312)
Net property and equipment $ 271567 $ 280,364

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment totaled
approximately $27,776,000 and $27,81 1,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Note 10 - Investments

The detail of investments is summarized in the following schedule:

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Investments $ 221,197 $ 194,037
Assets limited as to use 33,277 29,230
Total investments $ 254,474 $ 223,267
Investments consist of the following:
2010 2009
(in thousands)
Money market investments $ 2,964 $ 7,425
United States government securities - 3,157
Mutual funds 3,179 3,337
Corporate securities 11,824 -
Investment in Bronson Investment Fund 236,507 209,348
Total $ 254474 $ 223,267

Assets in the Bronson Investment Fund are included in the above schedule in the
category of the underlying assets in the fund.
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Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 10 - Investments (Continued)

Funds held by the trustee under bond indenture are held for the purpose of making
future bond principal and interest payments and payments for certain construction
projects. Investment income accrues to the funds as earned.

As described in Note |, the Hospital participates in Bronson Healthcare Group's pooled
investment management program, which is an investment pool of funds originating from
the Hospital and other BHG affiliates. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, approximately
$263 million and $218 million, respectively, of the Hospital's investments and cash are
with this investment pool. BHG has agreed to indemnify the Hospital and other affiliates
for market fluctuations, and therefore the assets are recorded by the Hospital at cost.
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the market value of Bronson Healthcare Group's
investment funds is approximately $8 million above cost and $4 million less than cost,
respectively.

Note I | = Accrued Liabilities

The detail of accrued liabilities is given below:

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Compensation and payroll taxes $ 8613 $ 7,201
Compensated paid time off 9.833 9.873
Accrued interest 1,874 218
Other 8,405 9,488
Total accrued liabilities $ 28,725 $ 27,480




Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 12 - Long-term Debt
A summary of long-term debt obligations at December 31, 2010 and 2009 follows:

2010 2009
(in thousands)

City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds -

Series 2009 $ - $ 70,490
City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Improvement
Bonds - Series 2006 75,000 75,000
City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds -
Series 2003 82,670 86,620
City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds -
Series 1998 - 19,335
City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds -
Series 2010 114,260 -
Other 8l 80
Total 272,011 251,525
Plus net unamortized premium 5,475 1,666
Less current portion 5,456 8,242
Long-term portion $ 272,030 $ 244,949

In September 2010, the City of Kalamazoo Hospital Finance Authority issued the
Hospital Revenue and Refunding Bonds (Bronson Methodist Hospital), Series 2010,
totaling $114,260,000. The proceeds of the bonds were used to refund the City of
Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 1998 and 2009, provide funding
for certain capital projects within the Hospital, and terminate interest rate swaps related
to the 1998 and 2006 series. At the same time, the Hospital converted the mode of the
2006 bonds from variable rate to fixed rate. The 2010 bonds consist of fixed rate term
bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.25 to 5.50 percent, with annual mandatory
sinking fund payments ranging from $55,000 in 2011 to $13,300,000 in 2036. The bonds
are secured by the gross revenue of the Hospital.

In connection with the advance refunding of the Series 1998 and 2009 Bonds and the
conversion of the Series 2006 Bonds, a loss on extinguishment of debt was recognized
in the amount of $4.14 million.



Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 12 - Long-term Debt (Continued)

In March 2009, the City of Kalamazoo Hospital Finance Authority issued the Hospital
Revenue Bonds (Bronson Methodist Hospital), Series 2009, totaling $70,660,000. The
proceeds of the bonds were used to refund the City of Kalamazoo Hospital Revenue
Refunding Bonds - Series 2005. The 2009 bonds consisted of variable rate bonds
bearing interest based on a weekly interest rate determined by a remarketing agent
(0.30 percent at December 31, 2009). The bonds were secured by the gross revenue
of the Hospital. The bonds were fully refunded in 2010.

In June 2006, the City of Kalamazoo Hospital Finance Authority issued the Hospital
Revenue Bonds (Bronson Methodist Hospital), Series 2006, totaling $75,000,000. In
September 2010, the 2006 bonds were converted from variable rates to a fixed rate.
The 2006 bonds consist of serial bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.50 to 5.25
percent and annual maturities ranging from $1,520,000 in 201 | to $2,470,000 in 2022, a
term bond in the amount of $8,235,000 due in 2025, and an additional term bond in the
amount of $44,170,000 due in 2036. The term bonds bear interest at 5.25 percent.
The Hospital has mandatory annual sinking fund payments on the term bonds. The
bonds are secured by the gross revenues of the Hospital.

In November 2003, the City of Kalamazoo Hospital Finance Authority issued the
Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (Bronson Methodist Hospital), Series 2003, totaling
$95,450,000. The 2003 bonds bear interest ranging from 4.0 to 5.25 percent. Principal
payments are to be repaid in annual amounts ranging from $3,800,000 in 2011 to
$5,770,000 in 2026. The bonds are secured by the gross revenue of the Hospital.

In connection with the loan agreements, the Hospital has made various covenants,
among others, to comply with certain financial ratios.

Future minimum payments on long-term debt are as follows (amounts in thousands):

2011 $ 5,456
2012 5,570
2013 5,805
2014 6,075
2015 6,385
Thereafter 242,720

Total $ 272,011




Bronson Methodist Hospital

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note 13 - Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The Hospital had three interest rate swap agreements to manage the overall variability
in interest rates. In September 2010, in connection with the bond refinancing, two of
the swap agreements were terminated and one swap was partially terminated, reducing
the notional amount of the third swap. A loss of $7.6 million was recognized in
conjunction with the termination of the swaps.

Accounting standards require all derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps to be
recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. The swaps are not considered to be
hedges of cash flow in accordance with accounting standards. Accordingly, changes in
the fair value of the swap agreements are reported as a component of excess of revenue
over expenses, as well as any settlements on the interest rate swaps.

At December 31, 2010, the Hospital had the following interest rate swap agreement:

Notional Amount Terminate Date Hospital Receives Hospital Pays

$53,285,000 May 2034 61 9% of LIBOR plus 0 31% 3 844%

At December 31, 2009, the Hospital had the following interest rate swap agreements:

Notional Amount Terminate Date Hospital Receives Hospital Pays
$75,000,000 May 2036 61 9% of LIBOR plus 0 31 percent 3 844%
$59,395,000 May 2028 62 4% of LIBOR plus 0 29 percent 3581%

$8,915,000 December 2015 62 4% of LIBOR plus 0 29 percent 3185%

Under the terms of the ISDA master agreement, the Hospital is required to maintain
collateral posted with the counterparty to secure a portion of the estimated value of the
derivative instruments when said instruments are valued in favor of the counterparty, as
determined periodically by the valuation agent. The Hospital was not required to post
collateral at December 31, 2010. The Hospital posted collateral of approximately
$7,400,000 at December 31, 2009. The Hospital's accounting policy is not to offset
collateral amounts against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instrument
obligations. Accordingly, the Hospital's posted collateral is included in investments on
the balance sheet.

As of December 31, the fair value of derivatives held was as follows:

Liability Derivatives
(in thousands)
2010 2009

Interest rate swaps $ 9,145 $ 14,512

Liability derivatives are reported on the balance sheet.
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Note 13 - Interest Rate Swap Agreements (Continued)
Liability derivatives are reported on the balance sheet

For the year ended December 31, the amounts of gain or loss recognized In the
statement of operations attributable to derivative instruments and related hedged items
and therr locations In the statement of operations are as follows

Amount of gain or loss recognized In earnings for derivatives not designated as hedging

Instruments
Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Earnings Reported in Statement of
(in Thousands) Operations as
2010 2009
Change In fair value of interest
rate swap agreements 3 (2,326) $ 21,619 Nonoperating (loss) gain
Loss on Interest rate swap
terminations 3 (7,654) $ - Nonoperating (loss) gain

Note 14 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Hospital participates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan sponsored
by the Group covering substantially all of its employees Under this arrangement, the
Hospital 1s charged for its share of costs incurred to provide pension benefits for its
employees under the plan Benefits are based on a participant's years of service and
compensation during the last 10 years of employment

Expense recorded at the Hospital under the pension plan totaled $9,770,000 and
$7.450,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively

The Hospital also participates in a postretirement defined benefit plan sponsored by the
Group that provides healthcare and life insurance benefits, subject to a per employee
Iifetime limit, for all active and substantially all retired employees and for certain other
Inactive employees Under this arrangement, the Hospital 1s generally charged annually
for its share of costs incurred to provide benefits under the plan Expense recorded at
the Hospital under the postretirement plan totaled $6,783,000 and $4,747,000 in 2010
and 2009, respectively These benefit arrangements may be subject to change, and the
effects of these changes, together with actuanal gans and losses, will be recognized
prospectively

Information 1s not available to permit the Hospital to determine its relative position in
the plans The details of the plans' funded status and expense calculations are disclosed
In the notes to the financial statements of the Group The plans' unfunded status as of
December 31, 2010 totaled approximately $89 million
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Note 15 - Professional Liability Self-insurance

The Hospital participates in a self-insured, multiprovider, professional liability
arrangement sponsored by the Group. This arrangement is designed to provide
participating members with a specified level of primary professional liability coverage,
with excess layers of insurance coverage provided by commercial insurers under claims-
made policies. The levels of excess coverage vary by year, depending upon the
availability and cost of that insurance. Should the claims-made policies not be renewed
or be replaced with equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during its term
and reported subsequently will be uninsured. Participating members of the self-insured
arrangement are annually assessed amounts that reflect the level of professional liability

risk subject to self-insurance for the participating entity. The expense assessed to the
Hospital totaled $5,558,000 and $3,889,000 for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Hospital is involved in certain legal actions arising from services provided to patients
and, additionally, is aware of certain possible claims that presently are not the subject of
judicial proceedings. Although the Hospital is unable to precisely estimate the ultimate
cost of settlements of professional liability claims, a provision is made for management's
best estimate of losses for uninsured portions of pending claims and for known incidents
that may result in the assertion of additional claims. Management believes, after
considering legal counsel's evaluations of all actions and claims, that insurance coverage
and accruals recorded at the Group for estimated losses are adequate to cover
expected settlements.

Note 16 - Functional Expenses

The Hospital is a general acute-care facility that provides inpatient and outpatient
healthcare services to patients in the Kalamazoo, Michigan area. Expenses related to
providing these services for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

2010 2009
Healthcare services $ 447983 $ 431,359
General and administrative 48,397 49210
Total $ 496,380 $ 480,569

Note 17 - Related Party Transactions

Investments in joint ventures, primarily the West Michigan Cancer Center (WMCC) and
the Michigan State University/Kalamazoo Center for Medical Studies (MSU/KCMS), that
are not majority-owned (both 50 percent owned by the Hospital) and controlled are
recorded using the equity method. Equity in earnings or losses of such joint ventures is

included in other revenue in the statement of operations and changes in net assets and
amounted to gains of $2,727,000 and $4,161,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Note 17 - Related Party Transactions (Continued)

WMCC and MSU/KCMS provide certain treatments to patients of the Hospital.
Revenue billed for these services totaled $697,000 and $762,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and were, in turn, reimbursed to the
Hospital by patients and third-party payors. Revenue and expenses from activities with
affiliated entities generally are based on the cost incurred by the entity providing the
service.

The Hospital also purchases certain services in the ordinary course of business,
maintains most insurance coverage, and leases certain facilities from the Group and its
subsidiaries. It also provides certain professional and consulting services to the Group's
subsidiaries. The Hospital's revenue and expenses related to these activities generally
are based on costs incurred by the provider and are not material in relation to the
Hospital's operations. In addition, during 2010, the Hospital transferred $1,000,000 to
Bronson Healthcare Group.

Note 18 - Contingencies and Subsequent Event

In December 2010, Bronson Healthcare Group, the sole member of the Hospital,
entered into a letter of intent to potentially acquire a 51 percent interest in Battle Creek
Health System (BCHS). BCHS is a joint venture owned by Trinity Health and Battle
Creek Health System Community Partners. Bronson Healthcare Group is potentially
acquiring Trinity Health's 50 percent interest and | percent interest of Battle Creek
Health System Community Partners. BCHS would retain all liabilities, except for long-
term debt of approximately $64.5 million and all assets, other than cash and investments
equivalent to the amount of outstanding debt.

BCHS has total assets of approximately $250 million and annual revenues of
approximately $230 million.

In January 201 I, the assets and liabilities of Bronson Vicksburg Hospital (a wholly owned
subsidiary of Bronson Healthcare Group) were transferred to the Hospital. The
transaction to accomplish this was done via a net asset transfer between the two
entities.
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